
 

 

 

Community Services and Land Use Committee 

Beaufort County, SC 
Council Chambers, Administration Building Beaufort County Government Robert Smalls 

Complex 100 Ribaut Road, Beaufort 

Monday, January 09, 2023 
3:00 PM 

AGENDA 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS: 
  ALICE HOWARD, CHAIRMAN                         YORK GLOVER, VICE-CHAIRMAN 
  GERALD DAWSON                     THOMAS REITZ 
   PAULA BROWN         JOSEPH PASSIMENT – EX-OFFICIO 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

3. PUBLIC NOTIFICATION OF THIS MEETING HAS BEEN PUBLISHED, POSTED, AND DISTRIBUTED IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH THE SOUTH CAROLINA FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - October 10, 2022 & November 7, 2022 Natural Resource Committee Minutes  

6. CITIZEN COMMENTS - (ANYONE who wishes to speak during the Citizen Comment portion of the 
meeting will limit their comments to no longer than three (3) minutes ( a total of 15 minutes ) and will 
address Council in a respectful manner appropriate to the decorum of the meeting, refraining from the 
use of profane, abusive, or obscene language) 

 

AGENDA ITEMS 
 

 

7. BEAUFORT CONSERVATION DISTRICT ANNUAL REPORT - DENISE PARSICK 

8. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF A BEAUFORT COUNTY GREEN SPACE PROGRAM  APPLICATION PROCESS, 
GEOGRAPHIC DESIGNATIONS, AND TIMELINE FOR  APPOINTING THE GREEN SPACE ADVISORY 
COMMITTEE AND ESTABLISHING GREEN SPACE PROGRAM 

9. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION TO INCLUDE THE OKATIE REGIONAL PRESERVE IN THE OLD 
GROWTH FOREST NETWORK PRIVATE FOREST REGISTRY AND ENTER INTO A MEMORANDUM OF 
AGREEMENT FOR THE PROPERTY TO REMAIN PERPETUALLY UNLOGGED 

10. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE SOUTHERN LOWCOUNTRY DESIGN MANUAL 
TO MEET THE MUNICIPAL SEPARATE STORM SEWER SYSTEM (MS4) PERMIT REQUIREMENTS 

1



County Council Agenda – Beaufort County, SC 

11. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF AN ORDINANCE FOR A TEXT AMENDMENT TO THE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT CODE (CDC): SECTION 5.11.90.D (PENALTY FOR CLEAR CUTTING PRIOR TO DEVELOPMENT) 
TO INCREASE THE PENALTIES FOR CLEAR CUTTING PROPERTY AND PROVIDE GUIDANCE ON ACCEPTABLE 
FORESTRY PRACTICES. 

12. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF AN ORDINANCE FOR A TEXT AMENDMENT TO THE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT CODE (CDC): SECTION 3.4.50 CULTURAL PROTECTION OVERLAY (CPO) ZONE STANDARDS 

13. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF AN ORDINANCE FOR A TEXT AMENDMENT TO THE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT CODE (CDC): APPENDIX C.2 (ROBERT SMALLS PARKWAY (SC 170)) TO UPDATE ACCESS 
MANAGEMENT STANDARDS. 

TO WATCH COMMITTEE OR COUNTY COUNCIL MEETINGS OR FOR A COMPLETE LIST OF AGENDAS AND 
BACKUP PACKAGES, PLEASE VISIT: 

https://beaufortcountysc.gov/council/council-committee-meetings/index.html 

2

https://beaufortcountysc.gov/council/council-committee-meetings/index.html


File Attachments for Item:

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - October 10, 2022 & November 7, 2022 Natural Resource Committee 

Minutes 

3

Item 5.



 

 

 

Natural Resources Committee 
Beaufort County, SC 

This meeting was held in person at the County Council Chambers, 100 Ribaut Road, 
Beaufort, and virtually through Zoom. 

Monday, October 10, 2022 
3:00 PM 
MINUTES 

Watch the video stream available on the County’s Website to hear the whole discussion or presentation on a 
specific topic or the complete meeting. https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/186243 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

Committee Chair Howard called the meeting to order at or around 3:05 PM.  

PRESENT 
Committee Chair Alice Howard 
Committee Vice-Chair Gerald Dawson 
Council Member D. Paul Sommerville 
Council Member Stu Rodman 
Council Member York Glover 
Council Member Chris Hervochon 
Council Member Mark Lawson 
Council Member Lawrence McElynn 
Council Member Logan Cunningham 
ABSENT 
Council Member Joseph F. Passiment 
Council Member Brian Flewelling 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Committee Chair Howard led the Pledge of Allegiance.  

3. FOIA 

Committee Chair Howard noted that public notification of this meeting has been published, posted, and 
distributed in compliance with the South Carolina Freedom of Information Act.  

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member McElynn, seconded by Council Member Dawson, to approve 
the agenda. 

The Vote - The motion was approved without objection.  

4

Item 5.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/186243


County Council Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member McElynn, seconded by Council Member Cunningham, to 
approve the minutes of September 6, 2022. 

The Vote - The motion was approved without objection.  

6. CITIZEN COMMENTS  

No citizen comments.  

 

7. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING MAP OF BEAUFORT COUNTY TO 
CHANGE 175 FORDING ISLAND ROAD (PARC ID NUMBER R600 022 000 011A 0000) FROM T2 RURAL TO 
C5 REGIONAL CENTER MIXED USE  

Please watch the video stream available on the County’s website to view the entire discussion.  

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/186243?ts=181 

Robert Merchant briefed the Committee on the zoning amendment, the property, and the applicant's 
proposed site use. Mr. Merchant highlighted that the change is compatible with existing land uses.  

Council Member Cunningham confirmed that the parcel is near the Honda dealership.  

Council Member Dawson and County Administrator Greenway discussed the previous decision to leave a 
portion designated as T2 Rural. 

Council Member Sommerville and Mr. Merchant discussed whether the property is contiguous and 
possible annexation into Bluffton.  

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Dawson, seconded by Council Member Rodman, to 
recommend approval of an ordinance to amend the zoning map of Beaufort County to change 175 Fording 
Island Road (Parcel ID Number R600 022 000 011A 0000) from T2 Rural to C5 Regional Center Mixed Use 
and to send this back to the Planning Commission to consider the adjacent T2 Rural parcel.  

Discussion: Committee Chair Howard and County Administrator Greenway discussed action to be taken 
at the next Council meeting. 

The Vote - The motion was approved without objection.  

8. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF AN ORDINANCE FOR A TEXT AMENDMENT TO THE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT CODE (CDC): SECTION 5.11.60 (RIVER BUFFER) TO CLARIFY PENALTIES FOR REMOVING 
TREES FROM THE RIVER BUFFER WITHOUT APPROPRIATE PERMITS 

Mark Davis outlined the text amendment's penalties and the requirement for the removed tree to be 
planted back in the space before payment into the mitigation bank.  

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Rodman, seconded by Council Member Dawson, to 
recommend approval of an ordinance for a text amendment to the Community Development Code (CDC): 
Section 5.11.60 (River Buffer) to clarify penalties for removing trees from the river buffer without 
appropriate permits. 

The Vote - The motion was approved without objection.  

9. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BEAUFORT COUNTY CODE OF 
ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 74 – BUILDING AND BUILDING REGULATIONS, SECTION 74-64, ADOPTION OF 
BUILDING CODES (AMENDS CODE OF ORDINANCES TO ADOPT THE 2021 STATE MANDATED CODE 
EDITIONS) 

Please watch the video stream available on the County’s website to view the entire discussion.  

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/186243?ts=925 

5

Item 5.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/186243?ts=181
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/186243?ts=925


County Council Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

Michael Brantley described additions and modifications to building codes as required by the South 
Carolina Building Codes Council's adoption of the latest edition of nationally recognized construction 
codes and appendices.  

Committee Chair Howard and Mr. Brantley discussed the application of the code to house renovations 
and whole-house surge protection.  

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Rodman, seconded by Council Member Glover, to recommend 
approval of an ordinance amending the Beaufort County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 74- Building and 
Building Regulations, Section 74-64, adoption of building codes (amends Code of Ordinances to adopt the 
2021 state-mandated code editions). 

The Vote - The motion was approved without objection.  

10. RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE AMENDED OYSTER FACTORY PARK MASTER PLAN (2020 OYSTER 
FACTORY PARK MASTER PLAN) WITH REDUCED ADDITIONAL PARKING  

Please watch the video stream available on the County’s website to view the entire discussion.  

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/186243?ts=1196 

Stefanie Nagid briefed the Committee on the proposed parking area included in the 2020 Oyster Factory 
Park Master Plan and recommended limiting the parking area to preserve open space.  

Council Member Rodman asked if there would be a barrier to prevent overflow parking in the preserved 
open space. Mrs. Nagid replied that there is an agreement with the Town of Bluffton allowing the area to 
be used for overflow parking if needed for an event.  

Council Member Glover and Charles Savino discussed the treehouse included in the Master Plan and 
potential liability concerns.  

County Administrator Greenway expressed concerns about building a parking lot on property bought 
through the Rural and Critical Lands program and having the treehouse built on County property.  

Council Member Glover and Mrs. Nagid discussed the number of parking spaces currently and potentially 
available and the use of those spaces for trailers.  

Council Member Glover made a motion to recommend approval of the item. The Committee and Mr. 
Greenway discussed the postponement of the item to allow time for the Town of Bluffton to produce 
sketches of the property that reflect the parking change.  

Motion to Postpone: It was moved by Council Member Glover, seconded by Council Member 
Cunningham, to postpone this item until the next Natural Resources Committee meeting. 

The Vote - The motion to postpone was approved without objection.  

11. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE APPOINTMENT OF STODD MCEWAN TO THE RURAL AND CRITICAL 
LANDS BOARD FOR A PARTIAL-TERM APPOINTMENT EXPIRING IN FEBRUARY 2023 ( DISTRICT 4 SUB FOR 
DISTRICT 7)  

Items 11, 12, and 13 were voted on as a package.  

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Glover, seconded by Council Member Dawson, to recommend 
approval of the appointment of Stodd McEwan to the Rural and Critical Lands Board for a partial-term 
appointment expiring in February 2023 (District 4 sub for District 7).  

The Vote - The motion was approved without objection.  

6

Item 5.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/186243?ts=1196


County Council Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

12. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE APPOINTMENT OF LUCIA O'FARRELL TO THE RURAL AND CRITICAL 
LANDS BOARD AS A REPRESENTATIVE FOR DISTRICT 4 FOR A PARTIAL TERM APPOINTMENT EXPIRING 
IN FEBRUARY 2023 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Glover, seconded by Council Member Dawson, to recommend 
approval of the appointment of Lucia O'Farrell to the Rural and Critical Lands Board as a representative 
for District 4 for a partial term appointment expiring in February 2023. 

The Vote - The motion was approved without objection.  

13. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE APPOINTMENT OF WENDY ZARA TO THE REGIONAL HOUSING TRUST 
OVERSIGHT BOARD AS THE REPRESENTATIVE FROM BEAUFORT COUNTY FOR A TWO-YEAR TERM 
PURSUANT TO THE REGIONAL HOUSING TRUST FUND IGA 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Glover, seconded by Council Member Dawson, to recommend 
approval of the appointment of Wendy Zara to the Regional Housing Trust Oversight Board as the 
representative from Beaufort County for a two-year term pursuant to the Regional Housing Trust Fund 
IGA. 

The Vote - The motion was approved without objection.  

 

14. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

PURSUANT TO S.C. CODE SECTION 30-4-70(A)(2): DISCUSSION OF NEGOTIATIONS INCIDENT TO 
PROPOSED CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS AND PROPOSED SALE OR PURCHASE OF DEVELOPMENT 
RIGHTS ON REAL PROPERTY KNOWN AS VILLAGE CREEKSIDE PDR 

Please watch the video stream available on the County’s website to view the entire discussion.  

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/186243?ts=2095 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Rodman, seconded by Council Member Glover, to enter into 
executive session at or around 3:40 PM.  

Discussion: Council Member Glover asked for landowners in attendance to be introduced to the 
Committee.  

County Administrator Greenway stated that the Committee was in jeopardy by going into executive 
session and that the discussion should be continued in open session.  

Kate Schaefer briefed the Committee on the recommendation to purchase development rights to 
establish a conservation easement.  

The Committee and Mrs. Schaefer discussed the number of structures allowed on the property.  

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Glover, seconded by Council Member Rodman, to approve the 
recommendation of development rights purchase on real property known as Village Creekside PDR and 
forward the item to the County Council.  

The Vote - The motion was approved without objection.  

Council Member McElynn confirmed that the funding for this project is coming from the Rural and Critical 
Lands Program.  

15. MATTERS ARISING OUT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The executive session item was discussed and voted on in an open session.  

16. ADJOURNMENT 

Adjourned: at or around 3:51 PM 

7

Item 5.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/186243?ts=2095


County Council Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

 
Ratified:   
 

8

Item 5.



 

 

 

Natural Resources Committee 
Beaufort County, SC 

This meeting was held in person at the County Council Chambers, 100 Ribaut Road, 
Beaufort, and virtually through Zoom. 

Monday, November 07, 2022 
3:00 PM 
MINUTES 

Watch the video stream available on the County’s Website to hear the whole discussion or presentation on a 
specific topic or the complete meeting. https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/189087 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

Committee Chair Howard called the meeting to order at 3 PM. 

PRESENT 
Committee Chair Alice Howard 
Committee Vice-Chair Gerald Dawson 
Council Member Joseph F. Passiment 
Council Member D. Paul Sommerville (arrived late)  
Council Member York Glover 
Council Member Logan Cunningham 
ABSENT 
Council Member Brian Flewelling 
Council Member Stu Rodman 
Council Member Chris Hervochon 
Council Member Mark Lawson 
Council Member Lawrence McElynn 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Committee Chair Howard led the Pledge of Allegiance.  

3. FOIA 

Committee Chair Howard noted that public notification of this meeting has been published, posted, and 
distributed in compliance with the South Carolina Freedom of Information Act.  

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Passiment, seconded by Council Member Glover, to approve 
the agenda. 

The Vote - The motion was approved without objection.  

9

Item 5.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/189087


County Council Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

5. CITIZEN COMMENTS  

No citizen comments.  

 

6. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE 
THE NECESSARY DOCUMENTS AND PROVIDE FUNDING FOR THE PURCHASE OF DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS 
ON TAX MAP SERIAL NUMBER R700 037 000 0131 0000 AND ALSO KNOWN AS LOBECO FARMS 

Please watch the video stream available on the County’s website to view the entire discussion.  

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/189087?ts=92 

Kate Schaefer provided background on the Lobeco Farms property, the due diligence reports, the plan to 
purchase the development rights to create a conservation easement, and the allowed use of a community 
garden.  

Council Member Dawson commented on the agricultural history of the property and expressed his 
support for the item.  

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Dawson, seconded by Council Member Glover, to recommend 
approval of a resolution authorizing the County Administrator to execute the necessary documents and 
provide funding for the purchase of development rights on tax map serial number R700 037 000 0131 
0000 and also known as Lobeco Farms. 

The Vote - The motion was approved without objection.  

7. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION TO THE AMENDED OYSTER FACTORY PARK MASTER PLAN 
(2022 OYSTER FACTORY PARK MASTER PLAN) AND SITE LAYOUT PLAN 

Please watch the video stream available on the County’s website to view the entire discussion.  

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/189087?ts=486 

Stefanie Nagid updated the Committee on the Town of Bluffton's revised treehouse location and parking 
layout plan.  

Committee Chair Howard confirmed that the potential site of the treehouse had been moved from 
County-owned property to property co-owned by the County and the Town of Bluffton.  

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Cunningham, seconded by Council Member Dawson, to 
recommend approval of a resolution to the amended Oyster Factory Park Master Plan (2022 Oyster 
Factory Park Master Plan) and Site Layout Plan. 

The Vote - The motion was approved without objection.  

8. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION TO UPDATE POLICY 19- ACQUISITION OF STORMWATER 
DRAINAGE EASEMENTS   

Please watch the video stream available on the County’s website to view the entire discussion.  

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/189087?ts=630 

Neil Desai outlined the update to the stormwater drainage easement policy, which would add some 
standard operating procedures to make the process more customer friendly.  

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Passiment, seconded by Council Member Glover, to 
recommend approval of a resolution to update Policy 19 - Acquisition of Stormwater Drainage Easements. 

The Vote - The motion was approved without objection.  

9. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE ARTHUR HORNE PARK STORMWATER PROJECT FUNDING 
OPPORTUNITY (Fiscal Impact for this project is $400,000 per FY23 and FY24 Stormwater Utility budget)  

10

Item 5.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/189087?ts=92
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/189087?ts=486
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/189087?ts=630


County Council Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

Please watch the video stream available on the County’s website to view the entire discussion.  

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/189087?ts=745 

Neil Desai provided the Committee with background on the funding application through the Natural 
Resource Conservation Service, the water quality and quantity project, and the multiple jurisdictions 
covering the project area.  

Committee Chair Howard commented on how the project will help address freshwater contamination and 
public engagement with the park, especially regarding animal observation.  

10. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE APPOINTMENTS TO A CULTURAL PROTECTION OVERLAY DISTRICT 
COMMITTEE  

Please watch the video stream available on the County’s website to view the entire discussion.  

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/189087?ts=862 

Robert Merchant briefed the Committee on the steering committee for the Cultural Protection Overlay 
District and the recommended nominees for appointment.  

Council Member Glover commented on his support for the recommended nominees. 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Glover, seconded by Council Member Passiment, that this 
committee be formed and the nominations of those on the list of names, including Queen Quet, Jeffrey 
Gardner, Daryl Orage, Bernice Wright, Philander McDomick, Ethel Sumpter, Elaine Scott, Mac Sanders, 
and Bob Semmler, be approved. 

The Vote - The motion was approved without objection. 

11. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF A REQUEST FOR DUE DILIGENCE ON THE PURCHASE OF DEVELOPMENT 
RIGHTS (PDR) FOR TMS# R600 038 000 0023 KNOWN AS THE TARVER TRACT 

Please watch the video stream available on the County’s website to view the entire discussion.  

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/189087?ts=1111 

Kate Schaefer discussed the recommendation for due diligence by the Rural and Critical Lands Board, the 
environmental benefits of land protection on this property, the water quality of the May River watershed, 
its location relative to other easements, and partner funding that could be available through DOT for 
property protection along scenic highways.  

Committee Chair Howard asked about the cost of due diligence. Mrs. Schaefer replied that the appraisals 
run between $5 - 15 thousand and that there needs to be an appraisal by a qualified easement appraiser.  

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Glover, seconded by Council Member Passiment, to 
recommend approval of a request for due diligence on the purchase of development rights (PDR) for TMS# 
R600 038 000 0023, known as the Tarver Tract. 

The Vote - The motion was approved without objection. 

12. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT A COUNTY-OWNED REAL PROPERTY LEASE 
POLICY (Fiscal Impact: No immediate fiscal impact. If adopted the County would receive the monthly 
lease rates moving forward)  

Please watch the video stream available on the County’s website to view the entire discussion.  

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/189087?ts=1508 

County Administrator Greenway briefed the Committee on efforts to develop written agreements for 
properties that previously had verbal agreements for leasing and maintenance. Mr. Greenway also 

11

Item 5.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/189087?ts=745
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/189087?ts=862
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/189087?ts=1111
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/189087?ts=1508


County Council Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

described the template created by staff for establishing property leases and the need for the finalized 
lease agreements to come back to the Committee for authorization.  

Brittany Ward provided an overview of the policy applied to all properties the County will lease out, 
including the application process, lease rates, deductions, types of properties appraised, and 
requirements to pay for utilities and maintenance costs. Also outlined were three parts to be included in 
each lease agreement:  

1) the term for each tenancy and a renewal clause 
2) the lease rate, an explanation of the deductions, and a 3% inflation rate increase  
3) the utility and maintenance clause 

Committee Chair Howard and Mrs. Ward discussed having a lease agreement versus an 
intergovernmental agreement for properties. Mrs. Ward also clarified that this lease policy is for County 
owned property.  

Council Member Glover asked about the agencies subject to the policy and how the policy would be 
applied. Council Member Glover, Mr. Greenway, and Mrs. Ward discussed the policy’s steps for an 
organization like the Economic Opportunity Commission. 

Council Members Dawson, Sommerville, and Cunningham flagged audio issues and said they missed 
Council Member Glover's questions. Mr. Greenway provided a summary of the discussion.  

Council Member Dawson asked staff to provide a list of properties leased by the County. Mr. Dawson and 
Mrs. Ward also discussed the inflation rate increase.  

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Passiment, seconded by Council Member Glover, to 
recommend approval of a resolution to adopt a County-owned real property lease policy.  

The Vote - The motion was approved without objection.  

13. ADJOURNMENT 

Adjourned: 3:45 PM.  
 
Ratified:   
 

12

Item 5.



File Attachments for Item:

6. CITIZEN COMMENTS - (ANYONE who wishes to speak during the Citizen Comment portion of the 

meeting will limit their comments to no longer than three (3) minutes ( a total of 15 minutes ) and will

address Council in a respectful manner appropriate to the decorum of the meeting, refraining from 

the use of profane, abusive, or obscene language)

13

Item 6.



14

Item 6.



15

Item 6.



16

Item 6.



17

Item 6.



18

Item 6.



19

Item 6.



20

Item 6.



21

Item 6.



22

Item 6.



23

Item 6.



24

Item 6.



25

Item 6.



26

Item 6.



27

Item 6.



28

Item 6.



29

Item 6.



30

Item 6.



31

Item 6.



32

Item 6.



33

Item 6.



34

Item 6.



35

Item 6.



36

Item 6.



37

Item 6.



38

Item 6.



39

Item 6.



40

Item 6.



41

Item 6.



42

Item 6.



43

Item 6.



44

Item 6.



45

Item 6.



46

Item 6.



47

Item 6.



48

Item 6.



49

Item 6.



50

Item 6.



51

Item 6.



52

Item 6.



53

Item 6.



54

Item 6.



55

Item 6.



56

Item 6.



57

Item 6.



58

Item 6.



59

Item 6.



60

Item 6.



61

Item 6.



62

Item 6.



63

Item 6.



64

Item 6.



65

Item 6.



66

Item 6.



67

Item 6.



68

Item 6.



69

Item 6.



70

Item 6.



71

Item 6.



72

Item 6.



73

Item 6.



74

Item 6.



75

Item 6.



76

Item 6.



77

Item 6.



78

Item 6.



79

Item 6.



80

Item 6.



81

Item 6.



82

Item 6.



83

Item 6.



84

Item 6.



85

Item 6.



86

Item 6.



87

Item 6.



88

Item 6.



89

Item 6.



90

Item 6.



91

Item 6.



92

Item 6.



93

Item 6.



94

Item 6.



95

Item 6.



96

Item 6.



97

Item 6.



98

Item 6.



99

Item 6.



100

Item 6.



101

Item 6.



102

Item 6.



103

Item 6.



104

Item 6.



105

Item 6.



106

Item 6.



107

Item 6.



108

Item 6.



109

Item 6.



110

Item 6.



111

Item 6.



112

Item 6.



113

Item 6.



114

Item 6.



115

Item 6.



116

Item 6.



117

Item 6.



118

Item 6.



119

Item 6.



120

Item 6.



121

Item 6.



122

Item 6.



123

Item 6.



124

Item 6.



125

Item 6.



126

Item 6.



127

Item 6.



128

Item 6.



129

Item 6.



130

Item 6.



131

Item 6.



132

Item 6.



133

Item 6.



134

Item 6.



135

Item 6.



136

Item 6.



137

Item 6.



138

Item 6.



139

Item 6.



140

Item 6.



141

Item 6.



142

Item 6.



143

Item 6.



144

Item 6.



145

Item 6.



146

Item 6.



147

Item 6.



148

Item 6.



149

Item 6.



150

Item 6.



151

Item 6.



152

Item 6.



153

Item 6.



154

Item 6.



155

Item 6.



156

Item 6.



157

Item 6.



158

Item 6.



159

Item 6.



160

Item 6.



161

Item 6.



162

Item 6.



163

Item 6.



164

Item 6.



165

Item 6.



166

Item 6.



167

Item 6.



168

Item 6.



169

Item 6.



170

Item 6.



171

Item 6.



172

Item 6.



173

Item 6.



174

Item 6.



175

Item 6.



176

Item 6.



177

Item 6.



178

Item 6.



179

Item 6.



180

Item 6.



181

Item 6.



182

Item 6.



183

Item 6.



184

Item 6.



185

Item 6.



186

Item 6.



187

Item 6.



188

Item 6.



189

Item 6.



190

Item 6.



191

Item 6.



192

Item 6.



193

Item 6.



194

Item 6.



195

Item 6.



196

Item 6.



197

Item 6.



198

Item 6.



199

Item 6.



200

Item 6.



201

Item 6.



202

Item 6.



203

Item 6.



 

 
 

January 9, 2023 
 
Ms. Alice Howard, Chairwoman 
Beaufort County Community Services & Land Use Committee 
100 Ribaut Rd 
Beaufort, SC 29902 
 
Dear Chairwoman Howard and Committee Members, 
 

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on behalf of the Coastal Conservation League 
regarding Agenda Item 12, a proposed text amendment by staff to Section 3.4.50 Cultural Protection 
Overlay (CPO) Zone Standards of the Beaufort County Community Development Code (CDC).  

 
We ask you to deny the proposed text amendment because it directly undermines the purpose 

and intent of the CPO zoning district, it is inconsistent with the Beaufort County 2040 Comprehensive 
Plan, and it will result in significant adverse impacts to the natural environment, historic cultural 
resources, and the traditional rural land uses on St. Helena Island as a whole.1 Notably, the Planning 
Commission voted unanimously to not recommend the proposed text amendment.   

 
In consideration of the discussion by Commission members, staff, and members of the original 

CPO Committee before the Planning Commission, we instead offer alternative language for your 
consideration and ask that this matter be referred to the County’s recently sat CPO Committee for their 
consideration, in line with their charge to review and strengthen the CPO’s purpose and protections.2  

 
Specifically, we recommend that the CPO be restored to its original form by striking all qualifiers 

that have been added regarding golf courses, thereby prohibiting all golf courses within the zoning 
district. Suggested language is redlined in the attachment to this letter, with changes highlighted in 
yellow.  

 
Under current law, golf courses, resorts and gated communities are prohibited within the CPO 

zoning district. Staff’s proposed “exception” amendment would cancel the overlay’s restrictions on large 
tracts of land and inject uncertainty into the process through transactional negotiations on every parcel 
that comes up for consideration. Opening St. Helena up to exceptions on 50+ acre tracts would expose 
more than 5,613 acres of land to gentrifying resorts, gated communities, and golf course developments. 
The St. Helena community made an informed choice to reject this type of development 20 years ago.  
Just last year, Beaufort County’s 2040 Comprehensive Plan recommended strengthening the overlay 
and its protections.3  
 

The CPO’s intent is to prevent gentrification and the loss of Gullah Geechee culture and land, 
specifically acknowledging “St. Helena’s historic cultural landscape and its importance as a center of 

                                                        
1 CDC Section 7.3.30.C. 
2 Consent Agenda Item 2, Recommendation to Approve Appointments to Cultural Protection Overlay District 
Committee, Beaufort County Council Meeting November 14, 2022, available at: 
https://www.beaufortcountysc.gov/council/council-committee-meetings/index.html.  
3 Envision Beaufort County 2040 Comprehensive Plan, pages 36-38, available at: 
https://www.beaufortcountysc.gov/council/comprehensive-plan/index.html.  

204

Item 6.

https://www.beaufortcountysc.gov/council/council-committee-meetings/index.html
https://www.beaufortcountysc.gov/council/comprehensive-plan/index.html


Coastal Conservation League | 2 

Beaufort County’s most notable concentration of Gullah culture.” (emphasis added).4 The CPO 
explicitly prohibits gated communities, resorts, and golf courses because these particular land uses are 
directly linked to increasing residential property taxes, which contributes to the loss of Gullah Geechee 
land ownership, and thereby Gullah Geechee culture. Indeed, this was documented in the findings used 
to establish the federally designated Gullah Geechee Cultural Heritage Corridor:  

The demarcation between planned resort communities and traditional 
rural agricultural lands is dramatic. Resorts, golf courses, and coastal 
suburban development on the islands led to steadily increasing property 
values and skyrocketing taxes. Island economies changed from rural 
subsistence farming to a service-based economy. Native islanders were 
often unable to bear the tax burden, and many were forced to leave their 
homes. Not just Gullah Geechee people but all islanders of modest means, 
black and white, have been adversely affected by the rising taxes caused by 
development and population growth.5 

It is our belief that the alternative language suggested herein fortifies the CPO’s intent and that 
it should be referred to the CPO Committee as well.  

Thank you for your consideration. 

Respectfully, 

Jessie White 
South Coast Office Director 
843-522-1800 | jessiew@scccl.org

CC: Ed Pappas, Chairman, Planning Commission 
Eric Greenway, County Administrator 
Rob Merchant, County Planning Director 

4 CDC Section 3.4.50. 
5 National Park Service. Low Country Gullah Culture Special Resource Study and Final Environmental Impact 
Statement. Atlanta, GA: NPS Southeast Regional Office, 2005.  

205

Item 6.

mailto:jessiew@scccl.org


CPO Proposal Beaufort County SCCCL 

Beaufort County Cultural Protection Overlay 
Original Text Proposal 

 

Division 3.4: - Overlay Zones 
3.4.10 - Purpose 

This Division provides regulatory standards governing land use and building 
form within special overlay zones. These zones are typically applied to certain 
areas of the County here extreme environmental, physical or cultural constraints 
need increased planning guidelines and consideration. 

3.4.20 - Applicability 
The requirements of this Division shall apply to all proposed development 
within the overlay zones, and shall be considered in combination with the 
standards for specific uses in Article 4 (Specific to Use), if applicable, and the 
development standards in Article 5 (Supplemental to Zones). If there is a conflict 
between any standards, the provisions of Article 4 (Specific to Use) control over 
Article 3 (Specific to Zones) and Article 5 (Supplemental to Zones). 

… 
3.4.50 -  Cultural Protection Overlay (CPO) Zone Standards

A. Purpose. The Cultural Protection Overlay (CPO) zone is established to
provide for the long term protection of the culturally significant resources
found on St. Helena Island. The CPO zone acknowledges St. Helena's
historic cultural landscape and its importance as a center of Beaufort
County's most notable concentration of Gullah culture.

B. District Boundaries. The boundaries of the CPO zone on St. Helena Island
are depicted on the Beaufort County Official Zoning Map. Where the CPO
zone is applies, the permitted uses shall be limited to the base zoning,
except where additional limitations are established within the CPO zone.

C. Site Design. Design features that restrict access to water and other
culturally significant locations, and franchise design are prohibited.

Attachment 

206

Item 6.



CPO Proposal Beaufort County SCCCL 

D. Use Limitations. The following specific uses are deemed to be 
incompatible with the CPO zone; and therefore, are prohibited: unless: 

I. The parcel contains fifty (50) acres of highland and 

2. A Development Agreement is entered into with Beaufort County that 
imposes and implements criteria (eg. additional buffers, density reductions, 
additional open space allocations, dock spacing limitations, infrastructure 
improvements, local cultural support mechanisms, etc.) that protects and 
enhances the surrounding community, environment, and the CPO zone; 
and 

3. The Development Agreement shall include terms for the regulation of 
land uses in order to protect and otherwise improve the PO zone more 
significantly.1  

Restricted Access (Gated Communities) An intentionally designed, 
secured bounded area with designated and landscaped perimeters, 
usually walled or fenced, that are designed to prevent access by non-
residents. 

Resort This use includes lodging that serves as a destination point for 
visitors and designed with some combination of recreation uses or 
natural areas. Typical types of activities and facilities include marinas, 
beaches, pools, tennis, golf, equestrian, restaurants, shops, and the like. 
This restriction does not apply to ecotourism or its associated lodging. 

Golf Course This use includes all regulation and par three golf courses 
having nine or more holes. 

                                                 
1 Strikes Proposed Text Amendment, offered by County staff, but not recommended by Planning 
Commission on Jan. 6, 2023. 

207

Item 6.



File Attachments for Item:

7. BEAUFORT CONSERVATION DISTRICT ANNUAL REPORT - DENISE PARSICK

208

Item 7.



FY22 Annual Report Highlights

209

Item 7.



Considered the "Father" of soil conservation, Hugh 
Hammond Bennet was a savior for agriculture. 

Noticing that agricultural fields were turning into 
dry savannahs during the early 1900s, 
he worked to spread awareness of this soil 
epidemic. 

Fortunately, his hard work paid off, and he 
became the head of the Soil Conservation Service, 
that is now known as Natural Resources 
Conservation Service, NRCS.

Hugh Hammond Bennett

“Land must be nurtured; not plundered and wasted.” - Hugh Hammond Bennett

210

Item 7.



Beaufort Soil & Water Conservation District  
Serving Beaufort County for over 75 years

Mission

“To help people conserve, 
maintain, and improve 
our natural resources 
and environment by 

promoting wise 
land use practices,

environmental education, 
and technical assistance.” Photo by Louis Schleuger, Whale Branch Sunset, Lobeco, SC   

211

Item 7.



The Conservation Partnership

USDA-NRCS & SC DNR

We are the local county partner for USDA- NRCS, Natural Resources 
Conservation Service. 

USDA-NRCS provides Farm Bill Programs and technical assistance 
for agriculture producers in Beaufort County.

Our Commission is guided by SC DNR Land Conservation Division 
and they help with technical & education assistance.

Working with Federal and State Governments

212

Item 7.



Federal Partnership: USDA-NRCS
Natural Resources Conservation Service

In FY22 USDA-NRCS & Beaufort Conservation 
District partnership helped  Beaufort County 

landowners by: 
• Paying out $30,588.33 in Cost-Share for Best Management Practices
• Obligating $11,000 Seasonal High Tunnels
• Applying conservation to roughly 200+ ac of land in Beaufort 

County
• Helping Landowners apply for EQIP Cost share (Environmental 

Quality Incentives Program)
• Providing Education & Outreach programs 213

Item 7.



USDA-NRCS Provides Cost share for Best 
Management Practices
 Tree Shrub/Site Preparation                

Backpack spray treats areas 
to support establishment of 
woody plant species

 Seasonal High Tunnel
Farmers can begin crops 
early to extend the growing 
season

 Pollinator Habitat 
Management
Planting cover crops help 
enrich the soil and prepare it 
for the next planting season

 Tree Planting 
Preparing land to plant 
Loblolly Pine 214

Item 7.



NRCS

Cost Share & Grants for BMPs 

Technical Assistance for BMPs

Prime Farm Land Easements

Workshops & Outreach Materials

Board Elections, Appointments & guidance

Education Outreach, Resources, & Technical 
Assistance

Annual State Funding (Same for each County)

SCACD, NACD, SCCDEA

Crystal 
Lake
Park

215

Item 7.



BSWCD Board of Commissioners
Beaufort Conservation District has 5 Commissioners, 2 are appointed by SC 
DNR and 3 are elected in November general elections. Commissioners are 
unpaid volunteers. 
Between the five commissioners they have over 120 years of experience! 

From Left to Right: Luke Inabinett; Elected Commissioner, 
Dannie Lesesne; Elected Commissioner, Alan Ulmer, Jr; Chair, 
Claude McLeod; Vice-Chair

Denise Parsick, Secretary/Treasurer, was 
reelected in November 2020

216

Item 7.



Conservation Staff Changes
 Shelby Berry retired this past summer. She joined 

us as a volunteer and then for almost two 
decades she was our amazing District Manager, 
juggling all the facets of our programs and 
conservation education efforts in Beaufort 
County.  

 New Staff

Annie Boyd, 
Education Coordinator

Hilary Gallop, 
Education Specialist

Leslie Meola, 
District Manager

217

Item 7.



Conservation and Education Outreach

Education: This past year Beaufort SWCD presented 210 classroom, camp, 
and festival outreach programs reaching over 3,860 students and adults. 

Festivals: Beaufort SWCD planned and presented Earth Day at the Port 
Royal Farmers Market. District staff worked on the Kidfest planning 
committee as well as setting up an outreach booth and supplying 
volunteer staff to help with the hospitality booth. Staff and educators also 
presented at the Soft Shell Crab Festival, and Birthday for the Birds. 

Green Steps Schools:  Bluffton Middle School participated in 
the Green Steps Schools programs this past year.  They did a 
great job incorporating Green Activities throughout the year in 
several classes. Check out the Green Step programs and 

school websites at http://greenstepschools.com/ Contact us or any of 
the mentors online to assist your school in becoming a Green Steps School!                                                   

218

Item 7.

http://greenstepschools.com/


Sharks! KidFest April 2022

OktoPRFest 2021 Bats!

Water Fest 2022
Green Steps

Bluffton Middle School  

219

Item 7.



Eco Camp 2022
We were thrilled to host our summer Eco 
Camp again after a 2 year break due to 
COVID-19. With help from Meghan Barkley, 
Clemson 4H Extension Agent, campers 
learned about farm conservation. Classes 
were led by SC Forestry Commission, BJWSA, 
Gullah Cooperative, Linda Peters; Beekeeper,  
and our own education specialists focusing 
on local natural resources. Campers explored 
topics including, but not limited to, the water 
cycle, pollinators, papermaking, water usage, 
forestry, gardening and growing crops such as 
cotton, tomatoes, and watermelon. They 
finished the week with a Field Day at Crystal 
Lake Park where they participated in fun 
Agriculture Olympic activities. We greatly 
appreciated the lunch Beaufort County Farm 
Bureau Women's Committee provided.   
What a treat!

220

Item 7.



Together for Beaufort Water Quality Coalition

As a member of the Beaufort County Human Services Alliance, Beaufort SWCD 

supports Together for Beaufort County by leading the T4BC Water Quality 

Coalition.  Beaufort SWCD continues to strengthen this coalition that consists of 

agencies and organizations involved in promoting, educating, & enforcing 

clean water in Beaufort County.  We meet with Lowcountry Stormwater Partners 

since many members belong to both groups.  Each meeting has a special 

presentation on a relevant topic as well as partner updates and upcoming 

events. 

Local Work Group
The Local Work Group for Beaufort and Jasper Counties met on July 21. This 

year the focus was on the priority areas of concern and then review of the 

Environmental Quality Incentives Program (EQIP) ranking questions. Their input 

into the ranking of resource concerns is critical to the success of these 

programs in Beaufort and Jasper Counties. The decisions made by the group 

are a significant factor in determining how Federal funds will be distributed to 

applicants in the Salkehatchie Watershed under the EQIP. 

Water Quality and Conservation Partnerships

221

Item 7.



KBCB
Associate Commissioner 

Carol Murphy has been an 
active Keep Beaufort 

County Beautiful member 
for several years.  

KidFest Planning Committee
Beaufort Conservation 

District has been working on 
this important committee 
for over 24 years.  Several 
agencies partner to plan 

this important educational 
event for families. 

Other Significant Partnerships

Friends of 
Hunting Island

We have worked with 
FOHI for several years 

on a variety of projects 
from education to 

festivals.  We also help 
distribute FOHI 

memberships and sell 
their merchandise.

Port Royal Farmers 
Market

Beaufort Conservation 
District has been 

organizing Earth Days in 
Beaufort & Port Royal for 
over 31 years. The Port 
Royal Farmers Market 

has become a 
wonderful venue for 

Earth Day and hope to 
have a 2023 event.

Farm Bureau
Farm Bureau partners 
with us on education 
projects and festivals.  
They fund Scholarships 

and lunch for Eco Camp 
and always bring great 

activities to KidFest.

Friends of Cypress 
Wetlands

Beaufort Conservation 
District developed an 
activity book several 

years ago to highlight 
the Cypress Wetlands.  

We have partnered with 
this new Friends group by 

editing the activity 
booklet and having 

copies printed. 

222

Item 7.



Partners, Partners, & More Partners…

National Estuarine Research Reserve

Lowcountry Resource,
Conservation, and Development

Beaufort 
County

Open Land 
Trust

223

Item 7.



File Attachments for Item:

8. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF A BEAUFORT COUNTY GREEN SPACE PROGRAM  APPLICATION PROCESS, 

GEOGRAPHIC DESIGNATIONS, AND TIMELINE FOR  APPOINTING THE GREEN SPACE ADVISORY 

COMMITTEE AND ESTABLISHING GREEN SPACE PROGRAM

224

Item 8.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Beaufort County Green Space Program – Timeline and Application Process to Appoint Green Space Advisory 
Committee and Establish Green Space Program 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Community Services and Land Use Committee Meeting, January 9, 2023 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Robert Merchant, Planning and Zoning Department Director 

20 minutes 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

On November 8, 2022, Beaufort County voters approved a referendum which authorized the establishment of 
the Beaufort County Green Space Program. The purpose of the Green Space Program is to preserve open 
space, to protect critical and natural resources, and/or to provide land for recreation. It allows for the 
purchase of development rights and fee simple interest in lands that are threatened by development, which, 
if it occurs, will have detrimental effects on land use patterns, traffic, public safety, stormwater runoff, water 
quality or other conservation objectives. The Green Space Program requires the establishment of a Green 
Space Advisory Committee which will, among other duties, develop the program criteria, application process, 
and review and recommend to Council lands to be acquired through the program. The Advisory Committee’s 
membership requirements and duties are established in Beaufort County’s Ordinance No. 2022/39. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

The Community Service and Land Use Committee is being asked to review and recommend to Council the 
following items: 

 An application for membership on the Green Space Advisory Committee; 

 The definition of state required Committee representation from the north, south, east and west (see 
attached map); 

 A timeline for appointing the Green Space Advisory Committee and establishing the program criteria. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

Not for this particular action. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

To recommend to Council approval or denial of the following items: 

 An application for membership on the Green Space Advisory Committee; 

 The definition of state required Committee representation from the north, south, east and west (see 
attached map); 

 A timeline for appointing the Green Space Advisory Committee and establishing the program criteria. 

 

225

Item 8.



COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 
Green Space Advisory Committee Application 

 
 
 
 

On November 8, 2022, Beaufort County voters approved a referendum which authorized the establishment of 
the Beaufort County Green Space Program in accordance with Section 4-10-1010 et seq. of the Code of Laws of 
South Carolina. The purpose of the Green Space Program is set forth in detail in Beaufort County’s Ordinance 
No. 2022/39 and applicants are encouraged to review the ordinance in its entirety. The overall purpose of the 
program is to preserve open space, to protect critical and natural resources, and/or to provide land for 
recreation. It allows for the purchase of development rights and fee simple interest in lands that are threatened 
by development, which, if it occurs, will have detrimental effects on land use patterns, traffic, public safety, 
stormwater runoff, water quality or other conservation objectives. 

 
The Green Space Program requires the establishment of a Green Space Advisory Committee. The duties and 
responsibilities of the Advisory Committee are: 

 
● to identify stakeholder groups with extensive knowledge of and experience in land preservation to assist 

with recommendations to the Advisory Committee on which area and types of properties to target for 
acquisition; 

• to develop and recommend to County Council for adoption program Criteria to guide the identification 
and prioritization of lands to be acquired through the Green Space Program; 

• to develop and recommend to County Council an application process that includes a 
measurable scoring system based on adopted program criteria; 

• to submit to South Carolina Department of Revenue, Council approved program criteria and 
application process for acknowledgement; 

• to review and recommend to Council, lands to be acquired based on the adopted program 
criteria and scoring system; and 

• to perform such other duties as may be assigned by County Council. 

Minimum Requirements: To be considered for appointment to the Green Space Advisory Committee, 
applicants shall possess considerable experience with, and a comprehensive knowledge of, the geography and 
condition of Beaufort County’s land, the natural environment, land development dynamics, and land preservation 
and development. 

 
 

DATE:   NAME:   
 

OCCUPATION:   
 

TELEPHONE:   EMAIL:   
 

HOME ADDRESS:  STATE:  ZIP CODE:   
 
 

Are you presently serving on a Board, Agency, Commission, Authority or Committee?  Yes  No 
 

If “yes”, when does the term expire?   
 

If recommended by a Council Member, indicate name and relationship:   

Which County region do you reside in (see attached map)?  North  South  East  West 

226

Item 8.



Please answer the following questions in detail. Provide additional sheets if necessary 
 
 

1. Please explain why you want to serve on the Green Space Advisory Committee. 
 
 
 
 
 

2. Please describe your professional background, skills and experience and how they contribute to you being an 
exceptional candidate to serve on the Committee. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

3. What do you envision as the role of the Green Space Advisory Committee? 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4. Please describe in detail what your understanding of the most pressing development and preservation issues of 
the region that could be addressed by the Green Space Program. 

 
 
 
 
 

5. Please provide a resume and any additional documentation and/or information that you believe could assist 
the Selection Committee in considering your application. 

 
 
 
 

 

Applications without a resume cannot be considered. Applications will be held for three (3) years 
for consideration. All information contained on this application is subject to public disclosure. 

 

 

Applicant’s Signature:  Date:   

227

Item 8.



'ƌĞĞŶ�^ƉĂĐĞ�WƌŽŐƌĂŵ�-��ŽƵŶƚǇ�ZĞŐŝŽŶ�DĂƉ�-�KƉƟŽŶ�� 
&ŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�EĂƚƵƌĂů��ŽƵŶĚĂƌŝĞƐ 

228

Item 8.



'ƌĞĞŶ�^ƉĂĐĞ�WƌŽŐƌĂŵ�-��ŽƵŶƚǇ�ZĞŐŝŽŶ�DĂƉ�-�KƉƟŽŶ�� 
&ŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�EĂƚƵƌĂů��ŽƵŶĚĂƌŝĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŵŽĚŝĮĐĂƟŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�ƌĞŶĚĞƌ�ŵŽƌĞ�ĞƋƵĂů�ƉŽƉƵůĂƟŽŶ�ĚŝƐƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ͘ 

229

Item 8.



Approval of Committee Selection Process
January 9 - Land Use Review and Recommendation
January 9 - County Council Review and 
Recommendation

Application Window Open for Committee Applicants
January 17 - Advertise 
February 21 - Deadline for Applications

Review of Applications
March 13 - Recommendations for Interviews 
presented to the Land Use Committee

Interview Applicants
April 24 - Final Slate of Committee Members 
presented to Council for approval

Committee Develops Program Guidelines
Committee to meet weekly to develop application
process and program criteria to guide the
identification and prioritization of lands to be 
acquired through the program

Council Approval of Program Guidelines
June 26 - Council to review, approve and send to
the Department of Revenue

Receipt of Green Space Tax Revenue
August 2023 - Receipt of 2nd Quarter Revenue
November 2023 - Receipt of 3rd Quarter Revenue

Timeline of Selection Process and Green Space Advisory Committee Implementation

August Sept NovOctJulyJan Feb March April May June

230

Item 8.



File Attachments for Item:

9. APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION TO INCLUDE THE OKATIE REGIONAL PRESERVE IN THE OLD GROWTH 

FOREST NETWORK PRIVATE FOREST REGISTRY AND ENTER INTO A MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT FOR 

THE PROPERTY TO REMAIN PERPETUALLY UNLOGGED

231

Item 9.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Resolution to include the Okatie Regional Preserve in the Old Growth Forest Network Private Forest Registry 
and enter into a Memorandum of Agreement for the property to remain perpetually unlogged 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Community Services and Land Use Committee on January 9, 2023 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Stefanie M. Nagid, Passive Parks Manager (10 minutes) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

New item for Committee/Council consideration 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

The Old Growth Forest Network (OGFN) is the only national network in the U.S. of protected, old-growth, 
native forests where people of all generations can experience biodiversity and the beauty of nature. OGFN’s 
goal is to locate and designate at least one protected forest in every county in the United States that can 
sustain a native old-growth forest. Mr. Michael Murphy, local long-time arborist, contacted Beaufort County 
to inquire about the County’s interest in including one of the County’s passive park properties in the OGFN 
registry. After a site visit to Okatie Regional Preserve with Mr. Murphy and the County’s Passive Parks 
Manager, it was determined that property would be applicable to the OGFN’s criteria and requirements. The 
2020 Forest Management Plan for the property recommends it is maintained in its current mature forest 
conditions, and the 2018 Passive Park Public Use Work Plan recommends future public access and passive 
recreation in the form of hiking and bicycling trails. Inclusion on the OGFN registry will provide positive forest 
management exposure for Beaufort County and may be conducive to obtaining future grants for trail 
development. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

No fiscal impact to Beaufort County 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval of the Resolution 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny the Resolution as titled. 

Move forward to County Council for adoption on January 23,, 2023 

 

232

Item 9.



RESOLUTION 2023/__ 

 

A RESOLUTION TO INCLUDE THE OKATIE REGIONAL PRESERVE IN THE OLD 

GROWTH FOREST NETWORK PRIVATE FOREST REGISTRY AND ENTER INTO A 

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT FOR THE PROPERTY TO REMAIN PERPITUALLY 

UNLOGGED 

 

WHEREAS Beaufort County has been a frontrunner among local governments in land preservation since 

1999 with the creation of the Rural and Critical Land Preservation Program, and; 

 

WHEREAS Beaufort County acquired 180 acres known as Okatie Regional Preserve in 2004 and 2012 

through the Rural and Critical Land Preservation Program for a total of $11,900,000 for the perpetual 

protection of the natural resources surrounding the headwaters of the Okatie River, and;  

 

WHEREAS Beaufort County’s 2020 Forest Management Plan recommends maintaining Okatie Regional 

Preserve in its current mature forest condition, which provides wildlife values of cover, food, and water 

sources, and; 

 

WHEREAS Beaufort County’s 2018 Passive Park Public Use Work Plan recommends future public 

access for passive recreation opportunities on Okatie Regional Preserve in the form of hiking and biking 

trails, and; 

 

WHEREAS Beaufort County recognizes mature forests are best at purifying the air and water and 

creating fertile soil that create successful conditions for many species of plants, animals and fungi, and;   

 

WHEREAS Beaufort County recognizes that less than 1% of the eastern US forests have remained 

undisturbed long enough to develop old-growth characteristics. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, THAT THE COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT 

COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA approves the inclusion of the Okatie Regional Preserve in the Old 

Growth Forest Network (OGFN) Private Forest Registry and agrees to enter into the OGFN 

Memorandum of Agreement for the property to remain perpetually unlogged. 

 

Adopted this ____ day of ____________, 2023. 

 

 

      COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 

 

 

      BY:        

       _______________________, Chairman 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

     

Sarah Brock, Clerk to Council 

233

Item 9.



 

 

                                 

                                                 Contact: info@oldgrowthforest.net 

       P.O. Box 21, Easton, MD 21601; 404-585-0329 

 

Congratulations! We are excited that your forest may soon be recognized as part of the national Old-Growth 

Forest Network. 

 

The Old-Growth Forest Network is the first national organization working specifically to preserve ancient 

forests for the enjoyment of present and future generations. The Old-Growth Forest Network recognizes the 

importance of private landowners who have made the commitment to keep their forests unlogged. Often these 

owners are sacrificing timber income to let their forests mature toward their full potential to provide habitat, 

beauty, clean water, and clean air. The result will be a national network of treasured forests where all 

generations can experience native biodiversity and the beauty of nature. Visit the Old-Growth Forest Network at 

www.oldgrowthforest.net.  

 

The categories marked with * will be included on our website. Please fill out as much of the form as possible 

and answer with complete statements.              

 

State* 
(Spelled out please) 

South Carolina 

County* Beaufort 

Forest* 
(Name of forest area as you 

would like it to appear on the 

website. Specific area first then 

hyphen and name of general 

area, if applicable.) 

Okatie Regional Preserve - Beaufort County Passive Parks 

Description* 
(Please give a brief description 

of the forest, including: Total 

acreage, and how much, if any, is 

old-growth? Age of oldest trees 

[known or approximate]? 

Dominant tree species or forest 

type? What, if anything, makes 

this forest special?) 

Okatie Regional Preserve is located in southern Beaufort County near the 

Town of Bluffton. It is 180 acres of pine flatwoods, mixed pine-hardwood 

forest, bottomland forest, and salt marsh. All but 30 acres appears to be 

old-growth with no previously known harvesting, although the exact age of 

the trees is not known by Beaufort County staff. Dominant tree species 

include loblolly pine, pignut hickory, southern magnolia, eastern red cedar 

and various oak species including live oak, southern red oak, white oak, 

and swamp chestnut oak. This forest is special due to the presence of a 

large grove of white oaks and pockets of slope forest, which is uncommon 

in Beaufort County. 

 

Protection 
(Describe how this forest is 

specifically protected from 

commercial logging. Please 

include the name of the written 

document that states what 

protections are in place for this 

forest (e.g. XYZ Management 

Plan), as well as the actual 

language quoted from the 

Beaufort County acquired the property through the County’s Rural and 

Critical Lands Preservation Program in 2004 and 2012 for the perpetual 

protection of the headwaters of the Okatie River and for public passive 

outdoor recreation. In 2020, Beaufort County staff hired a South Carolina 

certified forester to inventory the property and develop a Forest 

Management Plan. The Forest Management Plan recommendations are to 

“maintain the property in its current condition”, which “provides wildlife 

values of cover, food and water sources”. Additionally, the Beaufort 

County Passive Parks Manager created a Passive Parks Public Use Work 

Plan in 2018 that lists the Okatie Regional Preserve as a future passive park 

234

Item 9.

mailto:info@oldgrowthforest.net
http://www.oldgrowthforest.net/


 

 

document. Alternatively, you can 

simply send us the document 

itself.) 

to be opened to the public for nature-based passive recreation, which will 

include hiking, bicycling and water access opportunities. 

Acres of Protected Forest 

(Approx. total acres of forest 

land where documented plans or 

restrictions specifically prevent 

commercial logging from 

occurring. Please include a map 

of the protected forest with 

boundaries drawn, if available.) 

The entire 180 acres of Okatie Regional Preserve are protected through 

Beaufort County’s purchase of fee-simple title to the property in 2004 and 

2012 for a total of $11,900,000. The 2020 Forest Management Plan states a 

management recommendation to “maintain in its current condition”. Please 

see the attached map of the property in its entirety.  

Preservation History (If known, 

give a brief history of how this 

forest became protected. Do you 

know the name of the person 

who first sought to preserve the 

area? Any notable naturalists that 

studied the forest? Historical or 

other info that helped secure 

protection of the forest?) 

This property was identified by the Beaufort County Rural and Critical 

Lands Preservation Program as a critical property for the preservation of 

the headwaters of the Oakie River in order to protect water quality in the 

river. This is a fast-growing area for residential development in Beaufort 

County and the protection of this property provides much needed natural 

habitat and river buffer protection from any future development and the 

surrounding subdivisions. 

Coordinates 
(Approximate center of the 

forest. Coordinates should be in 

this form: 42.4941667  -

72.9364167). 

32.286  -80.931  

Contact   
(Name, mailing address, email, 

and phone number for the person 

who will be OGFN’s contact.) 

Stefanie M. Nagid 

124 Lady’s Island Dr., Beaufort SC 29907 

snagid@bcgov.net 

(843) 255-2152 

 

235

Item 9.

mailto:snagid@bcgov.net


Hwy 278

0 0.15 0.3 0.45 0.60.075
Miles²

Okatie Regional Preserve

236

Item 9.



0 0.45 0.9 1.35 1.80.225
Miles

²

Okatie
Regional
Preserve

Hwy 278

Hw
y 1

70

Bluffton Parkway

Bu
ckw

alt
er 

Pa
rkw

ay

237

Item 9.



 
MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT 

To include a forest in the Old-Growth Forest Network Private Forest Registry 

 

Recognizing that less than 1% of the eastern US forests, and less than 5% of the western US forests, have 

remained undisturbed long enough to develop old-growth characteristics.  

Recognizing that many species of plants, animals, and fungi are most successful in older forests.  

Recognizing that the older forests are best at purifying the air and the water, and creating fertile soil.  

Recognizing that most humans consider older forests to be the most beautiful forests, and will travel to 

see them.  

Recognizing that ecotourism is economically beneficial for nearby communities.  

Recognizing that all people, but especially the younger generations, need contact with natural areas.  

Therefore  

The Old-Growth Forest Network Private Forest Registry shall be established. Private landowners 

protecting maturing native forests on their land will be invited to be a part of this network. They shall 

remain unlogged for all time, allowing old-growth characteristics to develop naturally. Exceptions to the 

‘no logging’ requirement are allowed for situations of safety, trail maintenance, non-native tree species, 

and non-native insect infestations. Additionally, exceptions can include not for profit low-impact 

restoration activities that promote restoration of native, old-growth forests, outlined by a forest 

management plan. 

 

For Beaufort County in the State of South Carolina, the forest to be recognized as part of the 

Private Forest Registry shall be Okatie Regional Preserve, which is owned by Beaufort County 

 

__________________________________  

(Signature of landowner or representative)  

 

__________________________________  

(Signature of OGFN representative)  

__________________________________  

(Date)  

__________________________________  

(Date)  

__________________________________  

(Printed name of landowner or 

representative)  

__________________________________ 

(Printed name of OGFN representative)  

___________________________________  

(Title of landowner or representative)  

__________________________________  

(Title of OGFN representative)  

 

Mailing Address for Landowner: ____________________________________________________________ 
238

Item 9.



 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

239

Item 9.



File Attachments for Item:

10. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE SOUTHERN LOWCOUNTRY DESIGN 

MANUAL TO MEET THE MUNICIPAL SEPARATE STORM SEWER SYSTEM (MS4) PERMIT REQUIREMENTS

240

Item 10.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE SOUTHERN LOWCOUNTRY DESIGN MANUAL TO MEET THE 
MUNICIPAL SEPARATE STORM SEWER SYSTEM (MS4) PERMIT REQUIREMENTS 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Community Services and Land Use – January 9, 2023 

PRESENTER INFORMATION 

Jared Fralix, P.E. – ACA Engineering (alternate) 

Neil Desai, P.E. – Public Works Director  

(10 min) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

January 11th, 2021 – County Council Approved adoption of Southern Lowcountry Design Manual  
December 14th, 2022 – Stormwater Utility Board approved proposed updates to the Southern Lowcountry 
Design Manual. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

As Beaufort County has implemented the Southern Lowcountry Design Manual, staff has recognized the need 
for updates to be made to stay current as knowledge in our field improves. Updates to this manual also 
include process improvements for the development community in Beaufort County. The manual updates are 
consistent with the regional standards for those who have adopted the Southern Lowcountry Design Manual. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

There are no fiscal impacts associated with the adoption of the Southern Lowcountry Design Manual updates. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval of the proposed Southern Lowcountry Design Manual updates. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny the adoption of the proposed Southern Lowcountry Design Manual updates.  

(Next Step – Upon approval, send to County Council for First Reading) 

 

241

Item 10.



ORDINANCE 2023/______  

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE SOUTHERN LOWCOUNTRY DESIGN MANUAL 

TO MEET THE MUNICIPAL SEPARATE STORM SEWER SYSTEM (MS4) PERMIT 

REQUIREMENTS 

 

WHEREAS, Act 283 of 1975, The Home Rule Act, vested Beaufort County Council with  

the independent authority to control all acts and powers of local governmental authority that are 

not expressly prohibited by South Carolina law; and  

 

WHEREAS, Chapter 99, Article II, “Stormwater Management Utility” was adopted on  

August 27, 2001 and was modified by ordinance on August 22, 2005, September 28, 2015 and  

September 26, 2016; and  

   

WHEREAS, Stormwater Management Utility was established for the purpose of 

managing, acquiring, constructing, protecting, operating, maintaining, enhancing, controlling, and 

regulating the use of stormwater drainage systems in the county; and 

  

WHEREAS, pursuant to the requirements mandated by the Municipal Separate Storm 

Sewer System (MS4) permit issued by the South Carolina Department of Health and 

Environmental Control (DHEC) on December 1, 2015, Beaufort County is required to adopt 

standards related to Stormwater management and create a regulatory framework to enforce the 

same; and  

 

WHEREAS, County Council adopted the Southern Lowcountry Design Manual on 

January 11th, 2021 (2021/01) as the source of the technical stormwater standards used in the 

development of Stormwater Plans; and  

 

WHEREAS, County Council desires to adopt the updates to the Southern Lowcountry 

Design Manual as set forth in Exhibit A.  

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, THAT BEAUFORT COUNTY 

COUNCIL, in a meeting duly assembled, does hereby adopt and implement Southern Lowcountry 

Design Manual text amendments as set forth In Exhibit A.  

 

ADOPTED, this ___ day of __________, 2023. 

 

 

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY  
 

BY:        

      Joseph Passiment, Chairman 

 

ATTEST:  

 

  _______                     
Sarah Brock, Clerk to Council  

242

Item 10.



243

Item 10.



244

Item 10.



245

Item 10.



246

Item 10.



247

Item 10.



248

Item 10.



249

Item 10.



250

Item 10.



251

Item 10.



File Attachments for Item:

11. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF AN ORDINANCE FOR A TEXT AMENDMENT TO THE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT CODE (CDC): SECTION 5.11.90.D (PENALTY FOR CLEAR CUTTING PRIOR TO 

DEVELOPMENT) TO INCREASE THE PENALTIES FOR CLEAR CUTTING PROPERTY AND PROVIDE GUIDANCE 

ON ACCEPTABLE FORESTRY PRACTICES.

252

Item 11.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

TEXT AMENDMENT TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CODE (CDC): SECTION 

5.11.90.D (PENALTY FOR CLEAR CUTTING PRIOR TO DEVELOPMENT) TO INCREASE THE 

PENALTIES FOR CLEAR CUTTING PROPERTY AND PROVIDE GUIDANCE ON 

ACCEPTABLE FORESTRY PRACTICES. 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Community Services and Land Use Committee Meeting, January 9, 2023 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Robert Merchant, AICP, Director, Beaufort County Planning and Zoning 

(10 minutes needed for item discussion) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

Staff have been reviewing the Community Development Code (CDC) for necessary amendments as a result of 
the adoption of the 2040 Comprehensive Plan. During our review and at the request of the Planning 
Commission, staff has drafted amendments related to the clear cutting of property prior to development. 
 
At their December 5, 2022 meeting, the Beaufort County Planning Commission voted unanimously to 
recommend approval of the amendments.   

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

To achieve the desired results of the Planning Commission while taking into consideration the existing South 
Carolina State laws regarding the industry of Silviculture, staff has entirely removed the language of Section 
5.11.90.D. Staff has replaced this section with a structure separating out the penalties depending on the 
manner in which the property is clear cut. To meet the requirements of the one-year deferral, the land will 
require a Forestry Management Plan prepared/approved by a registered South Carolina Forester. If a 
landowner and/or operator does not have a Forestry Management Plan and proceeds to clear cut the 
property, a five-year deferral will be imposed.  In addition to the five-year deferral the landowner and/or 
operator will be responsible for planting the site back.   

FISCAL IMPACT:  

Not applicable. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

To approve or deny the proposed amendment to the Community Development Code (CDC): Section 5.11.90.D 
 (Penalty for Clear Cutting Prior to Development) 

 

253

Item 11.



ORDINANCE 2023 /   
 

TEXT AMENDMENT TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CODE (CDC): SECTION 

5.11.90.D (PENALTY FOR CLEAR CUTTING PRIOR TO DEVELOPMENT) TO 

INCREASE THE PENALTIES FOR CLEAR CUTTING PROPERTY AND PROVIDE 

GUIDANCE ON ACCEPTABLE FORESTRY PRACTICES. 

 

WHEREAS, forestry is an important industry in Beaufort County that allows property 

owners to responsibly manage their property in a natural state while profiting from its natural 

resources; and 

 

WHEREAS, Beaufort County supports the forestry industry and has also invested heavily 

in protecting trees during the development of property; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Community Development Code addresses penalties for clear cutting 

property with the intention to encourage forestry lands remain in forestry, and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 5.11.90.D currently has a two-year deferral penalty which does not 

adequately protect forestry and forested lands in Beaufort County from clear cutting with the 

intention to develop property; and  

 

WHEREAS, the 2040 Comprehensive Plan recommends Beaufort County assess the 

amount of time a property owner must wait to apply for a development permit after clear cutting a 

property for development; and 

 

WHEREAS, during the September 8th, 2022 meeting of the Beaufort County Planning 

Commission, the Commissioners requested staff strengthen the penalties for clear cutting by 

considering a five-year deferral on development permits.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE be it ordained by County Council in a meeting duly assembled that 

Section 5.11.90.D is hereby amended as set forth in Exhibit A hereto. Deletions in the existing 

code are stricken through. Additions are highlighted and underlined. 

 
 

Adopted this   day of   2023. 

 

 

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 

 
 

By:    

Joseph Passiment, Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 
 

 

Sarah W. Brock, JD, Clerk to Council 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

254

Item 11.



 

Division 5.11 Resource Protection Standards 

 
5.11.90 Forests  

A. Existing Forest Preservation. Existing forest types listed below shall be protected in 
accordance with Table 5.11.90.A: 

 
 

Table 5.11.90.A: Existing Forest Preservation 

 

Zone 
 

Maritime Forest 
Upland Forest 

(Mature) 
Upland Forest 

(Young) 

T1,T2 70% minimum 55% minimum 25% minimum 

T3, C3, C4, CP 65% minimum 45% minimum 20% minimum 

T4, C5, S1 60% minimum 20% minimum 10% minimum 

 

B. Mitigation. Existing forests may be cut over a greater area than permitted in Table 5.11.90.A only 
if mitigation is provided and the following standards are met: 

1. The mitigation is determined by the Director to be necessary due to unique conditions on 
the site that make it impossible to meet the protection standards due to site size, shape, 
utilities, or other elements that are unique to the property. 

2. The best forests, in terms of percentage of tree size, tree health, and habitat value, shall be 
preserved. 

3. The protection level given forests shall not be less than 80 percent of that required in Table 
5.11.90.A. Thus, a forest with a protection level of 45 percent could be reduced to 36 percent 
(45% X .80 = 36%). 

4. The land on which the mitigation is to occur shall be on the project site, except that within 
the T4 district only, where existing lots may be too small to permit on site mitigation, the 
land on which mitigation is to occur may be off-site, if within an approved mitigation 
bank area. All land used for mitigation shall be preserved as permanent open space. 

5. Mitigation shall consist of planting 1.25 acres of new woodland of comparable species for 
every one acre of disturbed forest for which mitigation is required. Planting require- ments 
are shown in Table 5.11.90.B. 

 
 

Table 5.11.90.B: Forest Mitigation Planting Requirements 

Plant Type Quantity Per Acre Size 

Maritime Forest 
 

Canopy Tree 25 2 ½-in. caliper 

Understory Tree 50 1 ½-in. caliper 

Shrubs 325 3-gallon pot 

 Upland Forest  

Canopy Tree 15 2 ½-in. caliper 

Pine 25 8-foot height 

Understory Tree 50 1 ½-in. caliper 

Shrubs 325 3-gallon pot 

 

C. Penalty for Disturbing Protected Forest Areas. If a protected forest area is damaged or cut 
down during or after construction, the mitigation shall involve the creation of protected open 

255

Item 11.



space that is 1.25 times the area destroyed. This may result in a loss of buildable area and/or 
lots. The area shall be replanted at the rate specified in Table 5.11.90.B for the type of forest 
damaged or cut down. 

D. Penalty for Clear Cutting Prior to Development. If a property owner clear cuts all or any 
portion of his or her property under the claim of good faith forestry practice, and then seeks a 
development permit for any portion of the property within two years of the clear cut, a 
rebuttable presumption shall arise that the clear cut was done in anticipation of future 
development and the permit denied. Any person seeking to rebut the presumption shall have 
the burden of proving their claim by clear and convincing evidence to the Zoning Board of 
Appeals.  Nothing in this section shall be construed as to prevent the practice of Silviculture for 
forestry as defined in Section 3.1.70 (Land Use Definitions). Forestry practiced in the County shall 
be accompanied by a Forestry Management Plan that has been approved by a certified South 
Carolina Forester. If the landowner and/or operator does not have a Forestry Management Plan, 
it shall be considered a willful violation of county ordinances. This section will apply to parcels 
greater than 5 acres. For tree removal on parcels less than 5 acres, see section (Section 5.11.100.D) 
for penalties. 

1. One Year Deferral. If a property owner and/or operator clear cuts their property under 
the claim of forestry practice as described in Section 5.11.90.D, the submittal of an application 
for a development permit on any portion of the property will be deferred for one year.  If the 
clear cutting operation violates the Forest Management Plan in place, a five year deferral may 
be applied.  

2. Five Year Deferral. If a property owner and/or operator clear cuts their property and 
cannot meet the standards as defined in Section 5.11.90.D (does not have a Forestry 
Management Plan), an application for a development permit on any portion of the 
property will be deferred for five years. In addition, mitigation plantings for clear cutting 
activities will be required as outlined in Table 5.11.90.B (Forest Mitigation Planting 
Requirements). For the purposes of this section, clear cutting is defined as more than 
twenty-five (25) percent of the area of a parcel(s) acreage being cleared. If less than twenty-
five (25) percent is cleared, staff may consider enforcement using Tree Removal standards 
(Section 5.11.100.D).  

 

 
 

 
 

256

Item 11.



   

 

TO:   Beaufort County Community Services and Land Use Committee 

FROM:  Beaufort County Planning and Zoning Department 

DATE:  January 9, 2023 

SUBJECT:  Proposed Text Amendment to Section 5.11.90.D (Penalty for Clear Cutting Prior to 

Development) 

STAFF REPORT: 

A.  BACKGROUND:  

The recently adopted 2040 Comprehensive Plan recommends Beaufort County assess the amount of 

time a property owner must wait to apply for a development permit after clear cutting property for 

development. During the September 8th, 2022 meeting of the Beaufort County Planning 

Commission, the Commissioners requested staff strengthen the penalties for clear cutting by 

considering a five-year deferral on development permits. Currently, the existing language in Section 

5.11.90.D (Penalty for Clear Cutting Prior to Development) imposes a two-year deferral on property 

for a development permit. This amendment seeks to implement a recommendation of the 

Comprehensive Plan by increasing the penalties for clear cutting in Beaufort County while 

encouraging professional foresters to practice best management practices in Beaufort County.  

B.  SUMMARY OF PROPOSED REVISIONS:  

 

To achieve the desired results of the Planning Commission while taking into consideration the 

existing South Carolina State laws regarding the industry of Silviculture, staff has entirely removed 

the language of Section 5.11.90.D. Staff has replaced this section with a structure separating out the 

penalties depending on the manner in which the property is clear cut. To meet the requirements of 

the one-year deferral, the land will require a Forestry Management Plan prepared/approved by a 

registered South Carolina Forester. If a landowner and/or operator does not have a Forestry 

Management Plan and proceeds to clear cut the property, a five-year deferral will be imposed.  In 

addition to the five-year deferral the landowner and/or operator will be responsible for planting the 

site back.   

 

C.  STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval.  

 

D.  BEAUFORT COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION: At the December 5, 2022 meeting of the 

Beaufort County Planning Commission, the Commission voted unanimously to recommend approval 

of the proposed text amendments. 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

257

Item 11.



   

E.  ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Revised Community Development Code Section 5.11.90.D (Penalty for Clear Cutting 

Prior to Development) 

2. South Carolina Code of Laws Title 48 – Environmental Protection and  

Conservation (Section 48-23-205 Local regulation of development affecting forest land) 

258

Item 11.



Portion of South Carolina Code of Laws Title 48 – Environmental Protection and Conservation 

Chapter 23 – Forestry Generally 

 

SECTION 48-23-205. Local regulation of development affecting forest land. 

 

(A) For purposes of this section: 

 

(1) "Development" means any activity, including timber harvesting, that is associated with the conversion of forestland 

to nonforest or nonagricultural use. 

 

(2) "Forestland" means land supporting a stand or potential stand of trees valuable for timber products, watershed or 

wildlife protection, recreational uses, or for other purposes. 

 

(3) "Forest management plan" means a document or documents prepared or approved by a forester registered in this 

State that defines a landowner's forest management objectives and describes specific measures to be taken to 

achieve those objectives. A management plan shall include silvicultural practices, objectives, and measures to 

achieve them, that relate to a stand or potential stand of trees that may be utilized for timber products, watershed or 

wildlife protection, recreational uses, or for other purposes. 

 

(4) "Forestry activity" includes, but is not limited to, timber harvest, site preparation, controlled burning, tree planting, 

applications of fertilizers, herbicides, pesticides, weed control, animal damage control, fire control, insect and disease 

control, forest road construction, and any other generally accepted forestry practices. 

 

(B) A county or municipality must not adopt or enforce any ordinance, rule, regulation, resolution, or permit related to 

forestry activities on forestland that is: 

 

(1) taxed on the basis of its present use value as forestland under Section 12-43-220(d); 

 

(2) managed in accordance with a forest management plan; 

 

(3) certified under the Sustainable Forestry Initiative, the Forest Stewardship Council, the American Forest 

Foundations Tree Farm System, or any other nationally recognized forest certification system; 

 

(4) subject to a legally binding conservation easement under which the owner limits the right to develop or subdivide 

the land; or 

 

(5) managed and harvested in accordance with the best management practices established by the State Commission 

of Forestry pursuant to Section 48-36-30. 

 

(C) This section does not limit, expand, or otherwise alter the authority of a county or municipality to: 

 

(1) regulate activities associated with development, provided that a county or municipality requires a deferral of 

consideration of an application for a building permit, a site disturbance or subdivision plan, or any other approval for 

development that if implemented would result in a change from forest land to nonforest or nonagricultural use, the 

deferral may not exceed a period of up to: 

 

(a) one year after the completion of a timber harvest if the harvest results in the removal of all or substantially all of 

the trees from the specific area included in a building permit, site disturbance or subdivision plan in item (1), and the 

removal qualified for an exemption contained in subsection (B); or 

 

(b) five years after the completion of a timber harvest if the harvest results in the removal of all or substantially all of 

the trees from the specific area included in a building permit, site disturbance or subdivision plan in item (1), and the 

removal qualified for an exemption contained in subsection (B) for which the permit or approval is sought and the 

harvest was a wilful violation of the county regulations; 

 

259

Item 11.



(2) regulate trees pursuant to any act of the General Assembly; 

 

(3) adopt ordinances that are necessary to comply with any federal or state law, regulation, or rule; or 

 

(4) exercise its development permitting, planning, or zoning authority as provided by law. 

 

(D) A person whose application for a building permit, a site disturbance or subdivision plan, or any other approval for 

development is deferred pursuant to the provisions contained in this section may appeal the decision to the 

appropriate governmental authority. 

 

HISTORY: 2009 Act No. 48, Section 1, eff June 2, 2009. 

260

Item 11.



File Attachments for Item:

12. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF AN ORDINANCE FOR A TEXT AMENDMENT TO THE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT CODE (CDC): SECTION 3.4.50 CULTURAL PROTECTION OVERLAY (CPO) ZONE STANDARDS

Recommended to postpone on January 9, 2022.

261

Item 12.



Text Amendments to Section 3.4.50 (Cultural Protection Overlay District) 
  

 

TO:  Alice Howard, Chair, Community Services and Land Use Committee, Beaufort County 

Council 

DATE:  January 9, 2023 

SUBJECT:  Text Amendment to the Community Development Code (CDC) Section 3.4.50 - Cultural 

Protection Overlay (CPO) Zone Standards 

 

A.  BACKGROUND: The Cultural Protection Overlay (CPO) District was originally adopted in April 

1999 when the County adopted the Zoning and Development Standards Ordinance (ZDSO). The CPO 

district was formulated through a community-based process. When the County adopted the 

Community Development Code (CDC) in 2014, the CPO district remained in the new code and 

remains intact.  

Purpose of CPO District: The CPO District applies to the entirety of St. Helena Island with the 

exception of Dataw, Harbor, Hunting and Fripp Islands. The purpose of the CPO District is defined in 

the CDC as follows: “The Cultural Protection Overlay (CPO) zone is established to provide for the 

long term protection of the culturally significant resources found on St. Helena Island. The CPO zone 

acknowledges St. Helena's historic cultural landscape and its importance as a center of Beaufort 

County's most notable concentration of Gullah culture.” 

Summary of CPO District: The CPO District basically provides additional development and use 

restrictions that may otherwise be permitted in the underlying zoning district. These restrictions 

include developments “that restrict access to water and other culturally significant locations, and 

franchise design.” The district also specifically prohibits the following uses: 

 Restricted Access (Gated Communities)  

 Resorts  

 Golf Courses (defined as having nine or more holes) 

 

B.  SUMMARY OF PROPOSED REVISIONS: The County Administration is proposing to make  

revisions the CPO district. The purpose of the revisions would be to give greater flexibility for 

developments to utilize previously prohibited uses in the CPO district if the developer takes measures 

to further protect and otherwise enhance the purpose of the CPO district. The revised language would 

apply to parcels containing a minimum of 50 acres of high ground. It would require a developer to  

enter into a Development Agreement with County Council and use the development agreement process 

to provide additional restrictions and protections “that protect and enhance the surrounding 

community, environment, and the CPO”. The attached additions to the language of the Cultural 

Protection Overlay District are underlined and highlighted on the next page. 

 

MEMORANDUM 

262

Item 12.



 

TEXT AMENDMENT TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CODE (CDC): 

SECTION 3.4.50 CULTURAL PROTECTION OVERLAY (CPO) ZONE STANDARDS 

 

WHEREAS, the Community Development Code in Section 3.4.50 is established to 

provide for the long term protection of the culturally significant resources found on St. Helena 

Island; and  

 

WHEREAS, the County Administration has determined that amendments to Section 

3.4.50 are necessary to ensure the legal defensibility of the Cultural Protection Overlay Zone; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE be it ordained by County Council in meeting duly assembled that 

Section 3.4.50 of the Community Development Code is hereby amended as set forth in Exhibit 

A. Deletions in the existing code are stricken through. Additions are highlighted and underlined. 

 

   

Adopted this ___ day of ____________ 2023. 

 

 

 

      COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 

    

 

      By: ______________________________________ 

            Joseph Passiment, Chairman       

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Sarah W. Brock, JD, Clerk to Council 

 
  

263

Item 12.



Exhibit A 

.4.50     Cultural Protection Overlay (CPO) Zone Standards      
 

A.  Purpose  D.  Use Limitations 
The Cultural Protection Overlay (CPO) zone is established   The following specific uses are deemed to be incompatible  
to provide for the long term protection of the culturally  with the CPO zone; and therefore, are prohibited unless: 
significant resources found on St. Helena Island.  The CPO  1. The parcel contains fifty (50) acres of highland and, 

 zone acknowledges St. Helena’s historic cultural landscape  2. A Development Agreement is approved by the Beaufort  
and its importance as a center of Beaufort County’s most  County Council that imposes and implements criteria  
notable concentration of Gullah culture.  (e.g., additional buffers, density reductions, additional  

B. District Boundaries  open space allocations, dock spacing limitations,  

The boundaries of the CPO zone on St. Helena Island are   infrastructure improvements, local cultural support  

depicted on the Beaufort County Official Zoning Map.  mechanisms, etc.) that protect and enhance the  

Where the CPO zone is applies, the permitted uses shall  surrounding community, environment, and the CPO and, 

be limited to the base zoning, except where additional  3. Limitations for the use that are designed to protect and  

limitations are established within the CPO zone.    otherwise improve the CPO more significantly: 

C. Site Design  Restricted Access (Gated Communities).   

Design features that restrict access to water and other   An intentionally designed, secured bounded area with  

culturally significant locations, and franchise design are   designated and landscaped perimeters, usually walled or  

prohibited.  fenced, that are designed to prevent access by 

  non-residents.   

  Resort 

  This use includes lodging that serves as a destination point  

  for visitors and designed with some combination of 

  recreation uses or natural areas.  Typical types of activities 

  and facilities include marinas, beaches, pools, tennis, golf, 

  equestrian, restaurants, shops, and the like.  This restriction 

  does not apply to ecotourism or its associated lodging. 

  Golf Course 

  This use includes regulation and par three golf courses  

  having nine or more holes.    

   

 

 

264

Item 12.



265

Item 12.



File Attachments for Item:

13. FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE FOR A TEXT AMENDMENT TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

CODE (CDC): APPENDIX C.2 (ROBERT SMALLS PARKWAY (SC 170)) TO UPDATE ACCESS MANAGEMENT 

STANDARDS.

266

Item 13.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

TEXT AMENDMENT TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CODE (CDC): APPENDIX C.2 

(ROBERT SMALLS PARKWAY (SC 170)) TO UPDATE ACCESS MANAGEMENT 

STANDARDS. 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Community Services and Land Use Committee Meeting, January 9, 2023 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Eric Claussen, PE, Engineering Director 

(10 minutes needed for item discussion) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

The Transportation Engineering Department has contracted Andrews Engineering to analyze Robert Smalls 
Parkway (SC 170) & Broad River Boulevard from Castle Rock Road to W.K. Alston Drive to update the County’s 
access management standards for these roadways. Andrews Engineering’s analysis revealed necessary 
updates to the access management plan for this corridor based upon review of existing and planned 
developments, existing and future traffic patterns, and crash history along with the 2040 traffic projects from 
the Lowcountry Council of Governments (LCOG) Regional Travel Demand Model prepared by CDM Smith. 

 

At their December 5, 2022 meeting, the Beaufort County Planning Commission voted unanimously to 
recommend approval of the amendments.   

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

The review of Robert Smalls Parkway and Broad River Boulevard revealed a need to update the future signal 
location recommendations to include 2 new intersection locations: 

 SC 170 at Goethe Hill Road 

 Broad River Boulevard at Joe Frazier Road 

Additionally, the amendments will update the distances in feet between each planned or existing signalized 
intersection from 1,900 feet to 2,640 feet. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

Not applicable. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

To approve or deny the proposed amendment to the Community Development Code (CDC): Appendix 
C.2 Robert Smalls Parkway (SC 170) Access Management Plan 
 

 
267

Item 13.



ORDINANCE 2023 /   
 

TEXT AMENDMENT TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CODE (CDC): 

APPENDIX C.2 (ROBERT SMALLS PARKWAY (SC 170)) TO UPDATE ACCESS 

MANAGEMENT STANDARDS. 

 

WHEREAS, Beaufort County’s Community Development Code currently recommends 

spacing for traffic signals and access breaks along the SC 170 corridor; and  

 

WHEREAS, Beaufort County’s Engineering Department contracted with Andrews 

Engineering to provide a corridor and access management plan for segments of SC 170 between 

Castle Rock Road and W. K. Alston Drive as well as Broad River Boulevard between Joe Frazier 

Road and W. K. Alston Drive; and  

 

WHEREAS, the corridor study assessed existing and proposed developments, traffic 

patterns at the intersections and segments, crash history, and projected 2040 traffic volumes 

from LCOG’s regional travel demand model; and 

 

WHEREAS, the corridor study recommended mobility and safety improvements to 

manage the projected increase in traffic between SC170 and Broad River Boulevard.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE be it ordained by County Council in a meeting duly assembled that 

Appendix C.2 Robert Smalls Parkway (SC 170) Access Management Plan is hereby amended as 

set forth in Exhibit A hereto. Deletions in the existing code are stricken through. Additions are 

highlighted and underlined. 

 
 

Adopted this   day of   2023. 

 

 

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 

 
 

By:    

Joseph Passiment, Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 
 

 

Sarah W. Brock, JD, Clerk to Council 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

268

Item 13.



 

Division C.2: ‐ Robert Smalls Parkway (SC 170) & Broad River Boulevard 
 

C.2.10 ‐ Application 
 

The following access management standards apply to all properties within Beaufort County's jurisdiction 
on Robert Smalls Parkway (SC 170) between the intersection of SC 280 (Parris Island Gateway) and the 
Broad River Bridge to include Broad River Boulevard. 

 

C.2.20 ‐ Signal Spacing 
 

The minimum spacing between full signalized access is 3,200 feet. The minimum spacing between 
directional signalized access is approximately 1,900 feet 2,640 feet. 

 

C.2.30 ‐ Future Signal Locations 
 

The specific signalized access locations shall correspond to the Future Signal Locations provided in the 
Figure 1 in Appendix 10-B: Robert Smalls Parkway Joint Corridor Plan of the Beaufort County 
Comprehensive Plan Corridor Review of SC 170 & Broad River Boulevard (2022). If a modification of the 
defined signal locations is desired to meet the demands of a specific development, the following 
conditions shall be satisfied: 

 

A. The modified location must meet the warrants for signalization with the proposed development as 
defined in the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) by the Federal Highway 
Administration (FHWA) with the analysis and specific application of traffic signal warrants to be 
approved by the Beaufort County traffic Engineer. 

B. The modified location must provide adequate spacing (as defined in the spacing standards 
indicated above) from existing traffic signals, programmed traffic signals, and future signalization 
of primary roadway intersections, including: 

1. SC 170 at SC 280. (Existing) 

2. SC 170 at W.K. Alston. (Existing) 

3. SC 170 at Goethe Hill Road. (Future) 

3. 4. SC 170 at Castle Rock Road. (Existing) 

4. 5. SC 170 at Broad River Road. (Existing) 

5. 6. SC 170 at SC 802. (Existing) 

7. Broad River Boulevard at Joe Frazier Road. (Existing) 

8.  Broad River Boulevard at W.K. Alston. (Future) 

C. The modified location shall not have an adverse impact on existing or future LOS based on 
comparative analysis of conditions with the recommended signal locations indicated in the 
Appendix I: Robert Smalls Parkway Joint Corridor Plan of the Beaufort County Comprehensive 
Plan above Corridor Review of SC 170 & Broad River Boulevard (2022). The developer shall be 
required to conduct LOS and signal system progression analysis to demonstrate compatibility of 
the proposed signal location with operation of the remainder of the signal system. 

C.2.40 ‐ Driveways 
 

A. Spacing: A minimum of one point of access to a property will be allowed. Additional access points 
above the one permitted may be granted provided the continuous roadway frontage of the property 
exceeds 500 feet. Single parcel access is strongly discouraged. Joint access driveways are 
encouraged for small parcels to adhere to the 500-foot spacing. Driveways should be limited to the 
number needed to provide adequate access to a property. Factors such as alignment with opposing 

driveways and minimum spacing requirements will have a bearing on the location and number of 
driveways approved. Refer to Table B.2.40.A. 

 

269

Item 13.



Table C.2.40.A: Maximum Number of Driveways Per Frontage 

Length of Frontage Maximum Number of Driveways 

500 feet or less 1 

500+ to 1,000 feet 2 

1,000+ to 1,500 feet 3 

1,500+ to 2,000 feet 4 

More than 2,000 feet 4 plus 1 per each additional 500 feet of frontage 

 
 

 
For parcels with frontage both on Robert Smalls Parkway and a secondary road, a minimum spacing of 500 
feet shall be maintained along Robert Smalls Parkway between a driveway and a signalized intersection. 
Within 500 feet of signalized intersections, access shall be off a secondary road. Driveway spacing shall be 
measured from the closest edge of pavement to the next closest edge of pavement. 

 

B. Driveway design: Driveway width and turning radii shall conform to SCDOT's Access and Roadside 
Management Standards. 

C. Driveway linkages: See Article VI, Section 6.3.10.D for driveway linkage requirements for non- 
residential development. 

D. Retrofitting existing driveways: As changes are made to previously developed property or to the 
roadway, driveways will be evaluated for the need to be relocated, consolidated, or eliminated if they do 
not meet the access management standards. 

C.2.50 ‐ Deceleration Lanes 
 

Deceleration lanes shall be required when the volume of traffic turning at a site is high enough in relation to 
the through traffic to constitute the potential for disruption as indicated in the traffic impact analysis. 

 

C.2.60 ‐ Traffic Impact Analysis 
 

A traffic impact analysis study shall be provided for proposed developments along the Robert Smalls 
Parkway corridor anticipated to generate at least 50 peak-hour trips. The procedures and guidelines for a 
traffic impact analysis as set forth in Article 6, Division 6.3 shall be followed. 

 

270

Item 13.



 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 

 

 

To: Beaufort County Community Services and Land Use Committee 

From: Eric Claussen, PE, Engineering Director 

Subject: Text Amendments to the Community Development Code (CDC): Appendix 

C.2 Robert Smalls Parkway (SC 170) Access Management Plan 

Date: January 9, 2023 
 

 
A. BACKGROUND: The Transportation Engineering Department has contracted 

Andrews Engineering to analyze Robert Smalls Parkway (SC 170) & Broad River 

Boulevard from Castle Rock Road to W.K. Alston Drive to update the County’s access 

management standards for these roadways. Andrews Engineering’s analysis revealed 

necessary updates to the access management plan for this corridor based upon review of 

existing and planned developments, existing and future traffic patterns, and crash 

history along with the 2040 traffic projects from the Lowcountry Council of 

Governments (LCOG) Regional Travel Demand Model prepared by CDM Smith. 

 

B. SUMMARY OF PROPOSED AMENDMENTS: The review of Robert 

Smalls Parkway and Broad River Boulevard revealed a need to update the future 

signal location recommendations to include 2 new intersection locations: 

 SC 170 at Goethe Hill Road 

 Broad River Boulevard at Joe Frazier Road 

Additionally, the amendments will update the distances in feet between each planned or 

existing signalized intersection from 1,900 feet to 2,640 feet. 

 

C. ATTACHMENTS: 

 Revised Section C.2 (Robert Smalls Parkway (SC 170) & Broad River 

Boulevard) 

 Corridor Review of SC 170 & Broad River Boulevard Study 
 

271

Item 13.



 

CORRIDOR REVIEW OF SC 170 & BROAD RIVER BOULEVARD 
 

 

 

BURTON HILL AREA 

CITY & COUNTY OF BEAUFORT, SOUTH CAROLNIA 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared for: 

 
City & County of Beaufort 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Submitted 

October 2021  

Rev #1-November 2021    

Rev #2-February 2022 

Rev #3-November 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

          
                   
Prepared by: 

 
 

272

Item 13.



CONTENTS           
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................................................  1 

 

 Study Area  ............................................................................................................................  1 

 Existing Conditions  ..............................................................................................................  2 

 Future Conditions  .................................................................................................................  2 

  

ROBERT SMALLS PARKWAY (SC 170) ....................................................................................  8 

 

 Existing Conditions ...............................................................................................................  8 

 Traffic Volumes  ...................................................................................................................  9 

 Intersection Analyses  ...........................................................................................................  9 

 Recommendations  ................................................................................................................  10 

  

BROAD RIVER BOULEVARD .....................................................................................................  17 

 

 Existing Conditions ...............................................................................................................  17 

 Traffic Volumes  ...................................................................................................................  18 

 Intersection Analyses  ...........................................................................................................  18 

 Recommendations  ................................................................................................................  19 

 

ADDITIONAL SUGGESTIONS ....................................................................................................  24 

 

 Recommendations .................................................................................................................  24 

  

SUMMARY of IMPROVMENTS ...................................................................................................  29 

 

 Robert Smalls Parkway (SC 170) ..........................................................................................  29 

 Broad River Boulevard  .........................................................................................................  29 

Connectivity/Access Enhancement  ......................................................................................  31 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX  

 

-Traffic Counts August 31 to September 7, 2021 

- Figures in 11” x17” Format to scale 

 

 

273

Item 13.



TABLES            
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Number  Title                   Page 

 

      1 Level-of-Service Summary- SC 170 Corridor Segment 10 

 

2 Level-of-Service Summary- Broad River Boulevard Corridor Segment 18 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

274

Item 13.



FIGURES            
 

 

 

 

 

Number  Title                   Page 

 

1 Study Area Corridors and Intersections ………………………………… 3 

   

2a Existing AM Peak-Hour Volumes ……………………………………… 4 

   

2b Existing PM Peak-Hour Volumes .……………………………………... 5 

   

3a Existing + Known Development AM Peak-Hour Volumes ……………. 6 

   

3b Existing + Known Development PM Peak-Hour Volumes …………….. 7 

   

4 Over-All SC 170 Corridor …………………………………………….... 12 

   

A SC 170 WK Alston Drive ……………………………………………..... 13 

   

B SC 170 Joe Frazier Extension …………………………………………… 14 

   

C SC 170 Bridges Charter/Goethe Hill Extension ………………………... 15 

   

D SC 170 Apartments/MOB ………………..……………………………… 16 

   

5 Over-All Broad River Boulevard Corridor .…………………………….. 20 

   

E Broad River Boulevard WK Alston Drive ……………………………… 21 

   

F Broad River Boulevard Jennings Road …………………………………. 22 

   

G Broad River Boulevard Joe Frazier Road/Joe Frazier Road Extension … 23 

   

6 WK Alston Drive Connectivity ………………………………………… 26 

   

7 Joe Frazier Road Extension Connectivity ………………………………. 27 

   

8 Goethe Hill Road Connectivity …………………………………………. 28 

   

9 Over-All Proposed Improvements .……………………………………... 30 

 

Note: The Figures in the body of the report are not to scale. To scale versions of the Figures are 

provided in the Appendix, each in a 11” x 17” format. 

275

Item 13.



1 

INTRODUCTION 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This study has been conducted to assess the transportation system located/serving the Burton area of the City 

of Beaufort/Beaufort County concentrating on the major arterial of SC 170 between WK Alston Drive and 

Castle Rock Road and the major collector of Broad River Boulevard between WK Alston Drive and Joe 

Frazier Road/Colonial Avenue.  

 

The study's main purpose is to define current traffic conditions, review available data for planned 

development projects and review future 2040 traffic projections from the Lowcountry Council of 

Governments (LCOG) Regional Travel Demand Model prepared by CDM Smith. This compiled information 

will be used to develop an access management strategy for both SC 170 and to lesser of a degree Broad River 

Boulevard to plan properly spaced future intersections, traffic signals and a secondary system of 

roadways/connectivity which will provide for alternative access of future developments. 

 

The preparation of this report has been completed in individual sections outlining the main corridor of SC 170 

and secondly the Broad River Boulevard corridor. Within each section, separate intersections which make up 

the defined study area are also provided. This method will allow individual sections or chapters of the report 

to be separately utilized for specific interests.  

 

Each section of the report will present free-standing information on the subject intersection/corridor, however 

the general methodologies utilized in the preparation of the analyses, growth trends, modeling, etc. will be 

described in this section of the report to avoid redundancy in individual corridor report sections.  

  

 

STUDY AREA 

 

The study area has been defined as a total of seven intersections within the Planning Area. These intersections 

are: 

 

SC 170: 

1. WK Alston Drive 

2. Goethe Hill Road (west) 

3. Bridges Prep School Access 

4. Castle Rock Road 

 

Broad River Boulevard: 

5. WK Alston Drive 

6. Jennings Road 

7. Joe Frazier Road/Colonial Avenue 

 

Figure 1 (Figures located at end of each respective section) presents the entire study area along SC 170, 

Broad River Boulevard, Goethe Hill Road, Joe Frazier Road etc. Also shown by this exhibit are the locations 

of known development projects (to be discussed later in this section) which are either approved or currently in 

the approval process. Figure 1 also provides a graphic overview of the known pending developments and the 

recommendations presented in this study. 

276

Item 13.



2 

EXISTING CONDITIONS 

 

Traffic Volume Data 

 

To determine the existing traffic volume flow patterns within the study area, manual turning movement 

counts were performed for the above referenced intersections in late August and early September 2021 when 

schools were in session. This data was collected for a weekday morning (7:00-9:00 AM) and evening (4:00-

6:00 PM) peak periods and are turning movement specific. Figures 2a and 2b depict the summarized traffic 

volume data for the respective AM and PM peak hours for the entire study area. It should be noted that this 

report concentrates on the peak commute time periods and did not include the Midday School peak-hour. 

These additional time periods maybe considered in the future as planning continues along these corridors.  

 

In addition to the intersection peak-hour volumes, existing daily two-way traffic volumes in vehicles-per-day 

(vpd) have been obtained using the SCDOT permanent count program for the 2019 condition which are 

presented below:  

 

• SC 170 west of WK Alston Drive east of Goethe Hill Road:  17,200 vpd;     

• Broad River Boulevard west of WK Alston Drive:  7,200 vpd; 

• Joe Frazier Road north of Broad River Boulevard:  8,700 vpd; and 

• Colonial Avenue south of Broad River Boulevard:  5,700 vpd. 

 

FUTURE CONDITIONS 

 

Development trends in the study area have been the basis for this analysis/report. Currently, the following 

four projects are in the preliminary stages of permitting which are located within or in close proximity of the 

study area: 

• Watercrest Apartments: Located along Broad Rover Boulevard east of WK Alston Drive this 

project plans 528 apartment style units; 

 

• SC 170/WK Alston Commercial Center (Beaufort Station): Located on the south side of SC 

170, west of US 21 the commercial center plans general retail, gas/c-store, drive-up coffee 

shop, and both fast-food and high turnover restaurants totaling 195,300 sf;   

 

• Old Jericho Apartments: Located along the northern segment of Old Jericho Road between SC 

170 and US 21 this project plans 96 apartment units; and 

 

• SC 170 Apartments and Medical Office:  Located on the north side of SC 170 west of WK 

Alston Drive this project plans 340 apartment units and 80,000 sf of medical office. 

 

Information of the site-generated traffic for each of these developments has been taken from the respective 

traffic studies and is presented in the Appendix of this report. Figures 3a and 3b depict the respective AM 

and PM peak-hour volumes illustrating Existing traffic volumes plus the above respective developments.  

 

Another source to define future traffic conditions has utilized the roadway traffic volumes. LCOG’s Regional 

Travel Demand Model Scenario Analyses Report prepared in June 2016 by CDM Smith has been referenced 

for the roadway segments of SC 170, Joe Frazier Road, and Broad River Boulevard. Utilizing the projection 

for the Future Year of 2040, 80-Percent Build-out (scenario 2) the following information has been gathered 

for roadways within the study area: 

 

1. SC 170-Broad River Bridge: 38,481 vpd; 

2. Joe Frazier Road- North of Broad River Road: 11,141 vpd; and 

3. Broad River Boulevard West of Joe Frazier Road: 10,825 vpd.  

277

Item 13.



G
O

ETHE HILL RD
 (E.)

BRO
A

D
 RIVER RD

JOE FRAZIER RD

G
O

ETHE HILL RD
 (W

.)

CASTLE ROCK RD

WK ALSTON DR

JENNINGS RD

COLONIAL AVE

PARRIS IS. GTWY (US 21)

S

E

U

S

T

TT

PARRIS IS. GTWY (US 21)

ROBERT SMALLS PKWY (sc170)

POSSUM HILL RD

RO
BERT SM

ALLS PKW
Y (sc170)

RE

RE

RISER  

BREEZEWAY   

B1-11   

BREEZEWAY   

B1-12  

B(b)  

B(b)   

A(b)   

C(b)  C(a)   

A(a)   

B(b)  
B(b)  

UP

UP

UP

UP

RE

RE

RE

RE

F

F

RE
RE

A/V UNIT ON
BUILDING 1

A/V UNIT ON

BUILDING 1

A/V UNIT ON
BUILDING 1

RE

BREEZEWAY   

B2-12  

BREEZEWAY   

B2-11  

RISER  

B(b)  

B(b)  
B(b)  

A(b)  

A(b)   

C(b)   

C(b)   

B(a)  

UP

UP

UP

UP

RE RE

RE

RE RE

RE RE

F

RE

BREEZEWAY  

B2-12  

BREEZEWAY  B2-11  

RISER  

B(b)  

B(b)  

B(b)  

A(b)  

A(b)  

C(b)  

C(b)  

B(a)  

UP

UP

UP

UP

RE

RE RE

RE RE

RE

RE

F

OLD JERICHO RD

ESTELLE RD.

TALISMAN 

W
A

LKER C
IR.

FIG
.A

FIG
.B

FIG
.C

FIG
.D

FIG
.E

FIG
.F

FIG
.G

BROOKINS PATH

SINGLETON HILL

FIG
URE 1:

STUD
Y A

REA

S.C. GRID

1

2

3

4

5

6

8

7

12345678

EXISTIN
G

 SIG
N

A
L

PRO
PO

SED
 SIG

N
A

L

PRO
PO

SED
 RO

A
D

 A
D

D
ITIO

N
/IM

PRO
V

EM
EN

TS

FUTURE RO
A

D
/C

O
N

N
EC

TIO
N

 (TBD
)

RO
A

D
 C

LO
SURE

O
LD

 JERIC
HO

 A
PA

RTM
EN

TS
W

A
TERC

REST A
PA

RTM
EN

T
W

A
LM

A
RT/C

RO
SS C

REEK SHO
PPIN

G
 C

EN
TER

BEA
UFO

RT STA
TIO

N
 SHO

PPIN
G

 C
EN

TER
RO

BERT SM
A

LLS M
ID

D
LE SC

HO
O

L
SC

 170 A
PA

RTM
EN

TS
M

ED
IC

A
L O

FFIC
E BUILD

IN
G

S (M
O

B)
BRID

G
ES C

HA
RTER SC

HO
O

L

LEG
EN

D

3

  
E

P
C

, L
L

C
2

4
0

4
 T

a
y
lo

r R
o

a
d

C
a

y
c

e
, S

C
 2

9
0

3
3

(8
0
3
) 7

9
4
 7

0
1
8

(8
0
3
) 7

9
4
 9

2
1
6
 F

a
x

278

Item 13.



=
 L

a
n

e
 A

s
s
ig

n
m

e
n

t

=
 N

o
n

 S
ig

n
a
liz

e
d

 In
te

rs
e
c
tio

n

F
ig

u
re 2

A

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 - A
M

 P
E

A
K

 H
O

U
R

1
1

7
3
5

2
9

1
0
7
5

7
11

1
0
2

7
2
9

4
5

1
0
3

7 17

91

=
 S

ig
n

a
liz

e
d

 In
te

rs
e
c
tio

n

S
C

-1
7
0
 A

ccess P
la

n
, B

u
rto

n
 A

rea
, B

ea
u

fo
rt, S

.C
.

Joe Frazier R
d.

Jennings Rd.

B
ro

a
d

 R
iv

e
r B

lv
d

.

WK Alston Dr.

S
C

-1
7

0

Goethe Hill Rd..

S
am

m
ie Ln.

Bridges

 Prep School

Castle Rock Rd.

6
9
4

2
4
7

0

437

5
5
22
2
5

154

144
4

7
6

9
1
81

9

11

63

19 3
5
3
21
7

1
8
8

1
5
6

131

32

1
0
0

3
3

Colonial Dr.
401

43

116

14

44

24

1
8
1

1
8
09

5
4

1
3
9

2
1

85
117

7
6

2
2
7

1
0
4

1
2
3

38
34

1
0
7
0

6
1

7
3
9

1
3

B
ro

a
d

 R
iv

e
r B

lv
d

.

S
C

-1
7
0

279

Item 13.

sandrews
Typewritten Text
4



=
 L

a
n

e
 A

s
s
ig

n
m

e
n

t

=
 N

o
n

 S
ig

n
a
liz

e
d

 In
te

rs
e
c
tio

n

F
ig

u
re 2

B

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 - P
M

 P
E

A
K

 H
O

U
R

=
 S

ig
n

a
liz

e
d

 In
te

rs
e
c
tio

n

S
C

-1
7
0
 A

ccess P
la

n
, B

u
rto

n
 A

rea
, B

ea
u

fo
rt, S

.C
.

Joe Frazier R
d.

Jennings Rd.

B
ro

a
d

 R
iv

e
r B

lv
d

.

WK Alston Dr.

S
C

-1
7

0

Goethe Hill Rd..

S
am

m
ie Ln.

Bridges

 Prep School

Castle Rock Rd.

Colonial Dr.
226

30

123

1

43

22

3
3
6

1
5
42

1
9
0

1
6
1

1
7

9
2

1
8
9

1
4
4

1
2
9

213

35

8
4

3
1
7

1
9
0

2
3

84

107

7

1
6
57
0
22

0

42

171

27

8

8
5
74
4

6
5
87

8

25

208

8
8
48
6

23

42

8
2
8

3
8

9
4
7

5
7

3
2

9
6
9

5
0

8
2
0

11

35

1
0
2

9
8
4

4
5

7
8
6

17

91

64

67

B
ro

a
d

 R
iv

e
r B

lv
d

.

S
C

-1
7
0

280

Item 13.

sandrews
Typewritten Text
5



=
 L

a
n

e
 A

s
s
ig

n
m

e
n

t

=
 N

o
n

 S
ig

n
a
liz

e
d

 In
te

rs
e
c
tio

n

F
ig

u
re 3

A

=
 S

ig
n

a
liz

e
d

 In
te

rs
e
c
tio

n

Joe Frazier R
d.

Jennings Rd.

B
ro

a
d

 R
iv

e
r B

lv
d

.

WK Alston Dr.

S
C

-1
7

0

Goethe Hill Rd..

S
am

m
ie Ln.

Bridges

 Prep School

Castle Rock Rd.

Colonial Dr.
401

43

130

14

44

24

1
8
1

1
9
49

6
7

1
5
2

2
1

7
6

2
5
5

2
0
9

1
7
7

157

32

1
0
4

1
4
9

1
1
4

3
3

154

144

4

7
6

1
1
1
41

9

11

63

19

3

7
5
01
7

8
9
0

2
4
7

0

437

7
7
02
2
5

38

34

1
2
7
7

6
1

9
5
7

1
3

1
1

9
5
3

2
9

1
2
7
1

18

11

1
1
6

1
0
2

5
9

1
2
0

8

63

130

85

131

8
6
2

126

14

21

1
6

10

Future
Commercial
Access

B
ro

a
d

 R
iv

e
r B

lv
d

.

S
C

-1
7
0

S
C

-1
7
0
 A

ccess P
la

n
, B

u
rto

n
 A

rea
, B

ea
u

fo
rt, S

.C
.

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 &
 K

N
O

W
N

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

A
M

 P
E

A
K

 H
O

U
R

281

Item 13.

sandrews
Typewritten Text
6



=
 L

a
n

e
 A

s
s
ig

n
m

e
n

t

=
 N

o
n

 S
ig

n
a
liz

e
d

 In
te

rs
e
c
tio

n

F
ig

u
re 3

B

=
 S

ig
n

a
liz

e
d

 In
te

rs
e
c
tio

n

S
C

-1
7
0
 A

ccess P
la

n
, B

u
rto

n
 A

rea
, B

ea
u

fo
rt, S

.C
.

Joe Frazier R
d.

Jennings Rd.

B
ro

a
d

 R
iv

e
r B

lv
d

.

WK Alston Dr.

S
C

-1
7

0

Goethe Hill Rd..

S
am

m
ie Ln.

Bridges

 Prep School

Castle Rock Rd.

Colonial Dr.
226

30

140

1

43

22

3
3
6

1
7
12

2
0
9

1
7
7

1
7

9
2

2
3
9

1
4
4

1
6
3

243

35

8
4

3
4
9

1
9
2

2
3

84

107

7

1
6
59
6
72
0

42

171

27

8

1
1
0
8

4
4

9
2
37
8

25

1
1
3
5

8
6

23

42

1
0
9
3

3
8

1
1
9
8

5
7

3
2

1
2
2

0

5
0

1
0
8
5

11

35

1
4
8

1
4
8

9
2

1
0
3

9

44

110

64

67

1
1
0

5

176

47

27

3
1

18

Future
Commercial
Access

208

B
ro

a
d

 R
iv

e
r B

lv
d

.

S
C

-1
7
0

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 &
 K

N
O

W
N

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

P
M

 P
E

A
K

 H
O

U
R

282

Item 13.

sandrews
Typewritten Text
7



8 

ROBERT SMALLS PARKWAY (SC 170)  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This section of Robert Smalls Parkway (SC 170) studied as part of this review is an approximately 1.4-mile 

section containing the four studied intersections of WK Alston Drive, Goethe Hill Road (east and west legs), 

Bridges Prep School access and Castle Rock Road.  

 

 

EXISTING CONDITIONS 

 

SC 170 

 

In general, SC 170 is a Principal Arterial which provides a five-lane cross-section where directional traffic 

flow is separated by a two-way left-turn lane (TWLTL). Sidewalks, immediately adjacent to the curb, exist on 

both sides of SC 170 in the vicinity of the WK Alston Drive intersection and to the east. West of WK Alston 

Drive (5-lane section), sidewalks are not provided however 8-foot striped shoulders are provided on each side. 

Posted speed limits are 45 mph from the area of WK Alston Drive towards the east and 55 mph west of WK 

Alston Drive to Castle Rock Road.  

 

Recently, the SCDOT completed a safety improvement project upgrading the ½-mile section of SC 170 

between Parris Island Gateway (US 21) and WK Alston Drive to install a raised median and install 

signalization at the WK Alston Drive intersection. This improvement has resulted in the removal of minor 

street approach left turns from both Cross Creek shopping center access drives as well as future access drives 

that are planned to be developed on the south side of SC 170.  

 

In general, access points along the defined section of SC 170 are mainly oriented towards intersecting 

roadways with a limited number of drives serving commercial uses, a church, and school. Only two single-

family residential unit driveways are located along this roadway.  

 

Intersections 

 

WK Alston Drive- Is currently a three-legged intersection recently signalized via the SCDOT safety 

improvement project. Geometrics are as follows: 

 

• Eastbound SC 170- Separate 200-foot left-turn lane and two through lanes; 

• Westbound SC 170- Separate 200-foot U-turn-lane, two through lanes and a separate 225-foot right-

turn lane; and 

• Southbound WK Alston Drive- Separate left-turn lane and a separate 280-foot right-turn lane.  

 

It should be noted that this intersection is expected to add a new fourth approach leg from the south to 

intersect SC 170 opposite WK Alston Drive. This new approach would serve a proposed mixed-use 

retail center and is expected to make mitigation improvements to this intersection including separate 

turning lanes and signal modifications.  

 

 

283

Item 13.



9 

Goethe Hill Road (east)- Is currently a three-legged STOP sign controlled intersection with the following 

geometrics: 

 

• Eastbound SC 170- Two through lanes and a separate 300-foot right-turn lane; 

• Westbound SC 170- Separate 230-foot left-turn lane and two through lanes; and  

• Northbound Goethe Hill Road- Separate 185-foot left-turn lane and a separate right-turn lane.  

 

Goethe Hill Road (west)- Is currently a three-legged STOP sign controlled intersection with the following 

geometrics: 

• Eastbound SC 170- Separate 160-foot left-turn lane and two through lanes; 

• Westbound SC 170-Two through lanes and a separate 300-foot right-turn lane; and 

• Southbound Goethe Hill Road- Separate 200-foot left-turn lane and a separate right-turn lane   

 

Bridges Prep School Access- Is currently a three-legged STOP sign controlled intersection with the following 

geometrics: 

 

• Eastbound SC 170- Two through lanes and a separate 300-foot right-turn lane; 

• Westbound SC 170- Separate 230-foot left-turn lane and two through lanes; and  

• Northbound Bridges Prep Access- Separate left-turn lane and a separate right-turn lane.  

 

Castle Rock Road- Is currently a four-legged signalized intersection with the following geometrics: 

 

• Eastbound SC 170- Separate 250-foot left-turn lane, two through lanes and a separate 300-foot right-

turn lane; 

• Westbound SC 170- Separate 220-foot left-turn lane, two through lanes and a separate 180-foot right-

turn lane;  

• Northbound Castle Rock Road - Separate 350-foot left-turn lane and a shared thru-right-turn lane 

and; 

• Southbound Castle Rock Road- Separate 275-foot left-turn lane and a shared thru-right-turn lane. 

 

 

TRAFFIC VOLUMES 

 

Daily traffic volumes within this section of SC 170 indicate an Existing two-way average annual daily traffic 

volume (AADT) of 17,200 vehicles per day (vpd). Future daily traffic volumes in accordance with the LCOG 

model indicate a greater than 100-percent increase to approximately 38,500 vpd. These future 2040 volumes 

indicate a level-of-service D (LOS D) and are nearly a LOS E (max. threshold of a LOS D is 38,640 vpd) 

based on SCDOT guidelines (Level-of-Service for Urban Facilities: Divided Principal Arterial). 

 

 

INTERSECTION ANALAYSES 

 

Analyses have been conducted for the AM and PM peak hour for the five intersections located along the SC 

170 corridor. Table 1 presents the results of these analyses for both Existing conditions as well as the Existing 

plus Development conditions.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

284

Item 13.



10 

Table 1 

LEVEL-OF-SERVICE SUMMARY1 

SC 170 Corridor Segment 

Time 2021 EXISTING

Signalized  Intersections Period Delay
2

LOS
3

Delay LOS 

AM 13.4 B 19.9 B

PM 12.5 B 21.2 C

SC 170 at Castlerock Road AM 14.9 B 17.8 B

PM 13.9 B 14.4 B

Unsignalized  Intersections

SC 170 at Goethe Hill Road (East) AM 49.4 E 80.7 F

PM 46.0 E 111.9 F

AM 62.8 F 137.7 F

PM 81.8 F 178.3 F

SC 170 at Bridges Prep AM 38.3 E
4

38.6 E
4

PM 51.1 F 82.2 F

1. Calculations completed using  the HCM 6th Ed methodology.

2.  Delay in seconds-per-vehicle.

3.  LOS = Level-of-Service.

4.  Due to extreme delays opening day, only right-turn exiting school is allowed, PM peak allows left  and right turns.

GENERAL NO TES:

1. For unsignalized intersections, delay is representative of the worst approach. 

2. For signalized intersections, delay is weighted average of all approaches.

3. LOS A thru LOS C defined as short delays, LOS D & E defined as moderate delays and LOS F defined as long delays.

SC 170 at WK Alston Drive

SC 170 at Goethe Hill Road (West) 

Sammie Lane

EXISTING + 

PROJECTS 

 
 

As shown by the above, operations at the study area intersections along SC 170 are generally acceptable if 

under traffic signal control and poor if under STOP sign control. These operations are indicative of major 

arterials which serve high volumes of through traffic where unsignalized intersections operate poorly due to 

the minor street left-turn movement. One point should be noted that during the recent counts, the unsignalized 

intersection of SC 170 at the Bridges Prep school DID NOT allow minor street left-turn movements during 

the AM peak-hour however the PM peak-hour (between 4-6 PM) did allow the minor left-turn. This 

movement restriction was added during the AM peak-hour due to significant operational issues during the 

first days the school was open.  

 

According to the LCOG 2040 Transportation model, projections along SC 170 are expected to be very near 

the capacity of a 4-lane divided/5-lane facility maintaining an acceptable service level (LOS D).  

 

   

RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

This section of SC 170 currently operates at good conditions and is expected to marginally maintain 

acceptable conditions based on growth projections. Future growth combined with access drives will be a 

major consideration to maintaining the capacity integrity along this corridor. Expectations of access by 

abutting private properties play the biggest part of maintaining capacity for a principal arterial such as SC 

170. The importance of proper spacing between signalized intersections, spacing of limited movement drives 

and connectivity between abutting land-uses is each important to the ability of SC 170 to serve traffic loads.  

285

Item 13.



11 

After review of the existing and future traffic loadings (daily and peak-hour) as well as development 

proposals currently under consideration within the study area, the following concept plan, Figure 4 has been 

developed which provides an over-view of the SC 170 corridor.  

 

As shown by this figure, two new signalized intersections are planned where the first is the result of an 

extension of Joe Frazier Road from Broad River Boulevard to SC 170 with a re-alignment of the eastern leg 

of Goethe Hill Road. The second is signalization of the Bridges Prep School access with a new extension road 

from SC 170 north to Goethe Hill Road/Sammie Lane which follows the current alignment of an unimproved 

roadway (Estelle Road). Also indicated are two development access drives planned as part of the 

apartment/MOB project located between WK Alston Drive and the new Joe Frazier Extension.  

 

Key notes of this proposed SC 170 access plan are as follows: 

 

1. Extension of Joe Frazier Road:  Joe Frazier accesses dense residential areas/neighborhoods to the 

north and east such as Habersham, Cherokee Farms, Laurel Bay, Iron Gate & Pinewood in addition to 

Beaufort County School(s). This extension will allow an alternative route to SC 170 as opposed to 

Broad River Boulevard to the west, WK Alston to the east and Colonial Avenue or Castle Rock Road 

to south. 

 

2. Separation of signalized intersections: 

 

• WK Alston Drive to Joe Frazier Extension/Re-aligned Goethe Hill Road: 2,230-feet. 

• Joe Frazier Extension/Re-aligned Goethe Hill Road to Bridges Prep Access: 2,635-feet. 

• Bridges Prep Access to Castle Rock Road: 2,310-feet.  

 

These separations are each approximately ½-mile which will provide for the ability to implement 

a signal system along this corridor.  

 

3. Re-alignment of Goethe Hill Road: Straightens the current curved approach to SC 170 and aligns 

opposite the proposed extension of Joe Frazier Road operating under traffic signal control. Allows 

closure of the current intersection of Goethe Hill Road (east) with SC 170. 

 

4. Extension of Colonial Avenue:  Provision of connectivity to the proposed signalized intersection 

along SC 170 (opposite Bridges Prep) maintaining access for the Colonial Avenue neighborhood and 

residences along Goethe Hill Road (west) in immediate vicinity of SC 170.  

 

5. Potential closure of approaches to SC 170: 

 

• Brookins Path. 

• Sammie Lane/Goethe Hill Road (west). 

   

6. Apartment/MOB Access Drives: Two access points are currently being planned as part of this 

development, location of the main access should be half-way between WK Alston Drive and Joe 

Frazier (approx. 1,100-feet) and will provide full access for both projects. This will allow future 

planning of a fourth approach leg from the undeveloped parcel to the south of SC 170. The RIRO 

which serves the MOB should be located approximately 400-600 feet west of WK Alston Drive.  

 

The following exhibits (Figures A-D) present each of the study area intersections along SC 170 in a blow-up 

view of the suggested geometrics and traffic control improvements.  

 

 

 

286

Item 13.



S

U

TT

FIG.A

FIG.B

FIG.C

FIG.D

FIG

G.F

S.C. GRID

RO
BERT SM

A
LLS PKW

Y (SC
 170)

CASTLE ROCK RD

COLONIAL AVE.

WK ALSTON

GOETHE HILL RD.(E)

FIG
URE 4:

RO
BERT SM

A
LLS PKW

Y
(SC

 170)
STUD

Y LIM
ITS

ESTELLE RD.

SING
LETO

N HILL CIR.

GOETHE HILL RD.(W)

BRO
O

KINS PATH

12345678

EXISTIN
G

 SIG
N

A
L

PRO
PO

SED
 SIG

N
A

L

PRO
PO

SED
 RO

A
D

 A
D

D
ITIO

N
/IM

PRO
V

EM
EN

TS

FUTURE RO
A

D
/C

O
N

N
EC

TIO
N

 (TBD
)

RO
A

D
 C

LO
SURE

O
LD

 JERIC
HO

 A
PA

RTM
EN

TS
W

A
TERC

REST A
PA

RTM
EN

T
W

A
LM

A
RT/C

RO
SS C

REEK SHO
PPIN

G
 C

EN
TER

BEA
UFO

RT STA
TIO

N
 SHO

PPIN
G

 C
EN

TER
RO

BERT SM
A

LLS M
ID

D
LE SC

HO
O

L
SC

 170 A
PA

RTM
EN

TS
M

ED
IC

A
L O

FFIC
E BUILD

IN
G

S (M
O

B)
BRID

G
ES C

HA
RTER SC

HO
O

L

LEG
EN

D

JOE FRAZIER EXT.

◄
560LF►

◄
1875LF►

◄
2,425LF►

◄
2,450LF►

  
E

P
C

, L
L

C
2

4
0

4
 T

a
y
lo

r R
o

a
d

C
a

y
c

e
, S

C
 2

9
0

3
3

(8
0
3
) 7

9
4
 7

0
1
8

(8
0
3
) 7

9
4
 9

2
1
6
 F

a
x

12

287

Item 13.



WK ALSTON

FIG
URE A

:
SC

170 IN
TERSEC

TIO
N

S
W

K A
LSTO

N
/ SC

 170

S.C. GRID

RO
BERT SM

ALLS PKW
Y (SC

170)

WK ALSTON EXT.

  
E

P
C

, L
L

C
2

4
0

4
 T

a
y
lo

r R
o

a
d

C
a

y
c

e
, S

C
 2

9
0

3
3

(8
0
3
) 7

9
4
 7

0
1
8

(8
0
3
) 7

9
4
 9

2
1
6
 F

a
x

13

288

Item 13.



RO
BERT SM

ALLS PKW
Y (SC

 170)

S.C. GRID

JOE FRAZIER EXT.

G
O

ETHE HILL EXT.

FIG
URE B:

SC
170 IN

TERSEC
TIO

N
S

JO
E FRA

ZIER/ SC
 170

  
E

P
C

, L
L

C
2

4
0

4
 T

a
y
lo

r R
o

a
d

C
a

y
c

e
, S

C
 2

9
0

3
3

(8
0
3
) 7

9
4
 7

0
1
8

(8
0
3
) 7

9
4
 9

2
1
6
 F

a
x

14

289

Item 13.



S.C. GRID

G
O

ETHE HILL RD
 (W

)

ROBERT SMALLS PKWY

ESTELLE RD (TO BE CLOSED)

BRIDG
ES CHARTER

COLONIAL AVE.COLONIAL AVE. EXT.

FIG
URE C

:
SC

170 IN
TERSEC

TIO
N

S
BRID

G
ES C

HA
RTER / SC

 170

BRO
O

KIN
S PA

TH

  
E

P
C

, L
L

C
2

4
0

4
 T

a
y
lo

r R
o

a
d

C
a

y
c

e
, S

C
 2

9
0

3
3

(8
0
3
) 7

9
4
 7

0
1
8

(8
0
3
) 7

9
4
 9

2
1
6
 F

a
x

15

290

Item 13.



FIG
URE D

:
SC

170 IN
TERSEC

TIO
N

S
A

PTS/M
O

B/ SC
 170

S.C. GRID

RO
BERT SM

ALLS PKW
Y (SC

170)
FUTURE M

ED
IC

A
L O

FFIC
E BUILD

IN
G

S

WK ALSTON

  
E

P
C

, L
L

C
2

4
0

4
 T

a
y
lo

r R
o

a
d

C
a

y
c

e
, S

C
 2

9
0

3
3

(8
0
3
) 7

9
4
 7

0
1
8

(8
0
3
) 7

9
4
 9

2
1
6
 F

a
x

16

291

Item 13.



17 

BROAD RIVER BOULEVARD 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The section of Broad River Boulevard studied as part of this review is a slightly less than 1-mile section 

containing the three studied intersections of WK Alston Drive, Jennings Road, and Joe Frazier Road.  

 

 

EXISTING CONDITIONS 

 

Broad River Boulevard 

 

In general, this roadway is a collector providing a two-lane cross-section where directional traffic flow is 

separated by a double-yellow centerline. Sidewalks, immediately adjacent to the curb, exist on the north side 

throughout the study area (WK Alston Drive to Joe Frazier Road). Minimal shoulders are provided ranging in 

width of 1-2-feet. The posted speed limit is 45 mph throughout the study area.  

 

Being a collector, there are frequent access points along the defined section of Broad River Boulevard serving 

mainly residential units with an occasional industrial/commercial drive (Talisman Drive).  

 

Intersections 

 

WK Alston Drive- Is currently a three-legged signalized intersection. Geometrics are as follows: 

 

• Eastbound Broad River Boulevard - Single-lane approach serving both through and right-turn 

movements; 

• Westbound Broad River Boulevard - Single-lane approach serving both left and through movements; 

and 

• Northbound WK Alston Drive- Separate 230-foot left-turn lane and a separate right-turn lane.  

 

Jennings Road- Is currently a three-legged STOP sign controlled intersection. Geometrics are as follows: 

 

• Eastbound Broad River Boulevard - Separate 200-foot left-turn lane and a single through lane; 

• Westbound Broad River Boulevard - Single through lane and a separate 210-foot right-turn lane 

separated by a painted median; and  

• Southbound Jennings Road- Separate 175-foot left-turn lane and a separate right-turn lane. 

 

Joe Frazier Road/Colonial Avenue- Is currently a four-legged signalized intersection. Geometrics are as 

follows: 

 

• Eastbound Broad River Boulevard - Separate 280-foot left-turn lane and a shared thru/right-turn lane; 

• Westbound Broad River Boulevard - Separate 200-foot left-turn lane and a shared thru/right-turn 

lane;  

• Northbound Colonial Ave – Single-lane for left/thru/right-turn movements; and 

• Southbound Joe Frazier Road- Separate 260-foot left-turn lane and a shared thru-right-turn lane. 

 

292

Item 13.



18 

TRAFFIC VOLUMES 

 

Daily traffic volumes within this section of Broad River Boulevard (just west of Joe Frazier Road) indicate an 

Existing two-way average annual daily traffic volume (AADT) of 7,200 vpd. Future daily traffic volumes in 

accordance with the LCOG’s model indicate an over 20-percent increase to approximately 10,825 vpd. This 

future 2040 volume results in a LOS E (LOS D max is 9,890 vpd for an undivided Collector) by Level-of-

Service for Urban Facilities (ref. Appendix SCDOT References).  

 

 

INTERSECTION ANALYSES 

 

Analyses have been conducted for the AM and PM peak hour for the three intersections located along the 

Broad River Boulevard corridor. Table 2 presents the results of these analyses for both Existing conditions as 

well as the Existing plus Development conditions.  

 

Table 2 

LEVEL-OF-SERVICE SUMMARY1 

Broad River Boulevard Corridor Segment 

Time 2021 EXISTING

Signalized  Intersection Period Delay
2

LOS
3

Delay LOS 

AM 23.3 C 25.1 C

PM 20.5 C 22.5 C

Unsignalized  Intersections

AM 15.8 C 17.8 C

PM 16.3 C 19.7 C

AM 16.0 C 17.1 C

PM 17.6 C 19.1 C

1. Calculations completed using  the HCM 6th Ed methodology.

2.  Delay in seconds-per-vehicle.

3.  LOS = Level-of-Service.

GENERAL NO TES:

1. For unsignalized intersections, delay is representative of the worst approach.

2. For signalized intersections, delay is weighted average of all approaches.

3. LOS A thru LOS C defined as short delays, LOS D & E defined as moderate delays and LOS F defined as long delays.

Broad River Boulevard at Joe Frazier 

Road/Colonial Ave

Broad River Boulevard at Jennings 

Road

Broad River Boulevard at WK Alston 

Drive

EXISTING + 

PROJECTS 

 
 

As shown by the above, operations at the study area intersections along Broad River Boulevard are currently 

at a LOS C and are expected to maintain a LOS C under the near-term Existing plus projects scenario. Further 

review of the signalized intersection of Broad River Boulevard at Joe Frazier Road indicated a travel pattern 

to/from the west on Broad River Boulevard (towards the Broad River Bridge) as indicated by the following 

high-volume movements which are currently capacity concerns: 

 

• Southbound right-turn movement from Joe Frazier Road to westbound Broad River Boulevard 

(AM=401, PM=226 veh.); and 

• Eastbound left-turn movement from Broad River Boulevard to northbound Joe Frazier Road 

(AM=181, PM=336 veh.).  

 

293

Item 13.



19 

While in the near term, operations at individual intersections are expected to remain as a LOS C, the LCOG 

2040 Transportation model defines two roadway sections which are expected to experience capability issues 

operating at or above capacity limits. Joe Frazier Road north of Broad River Boulevard is expected to operate 

poorly as a two-lane cross-section and Broad River Boulevard west of Joe Frazier Road is expected to operate 

at capacity.  

 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS  

 

This section of Broad River Boulevard currently operates in good condition and is expected to maintain 

acceptable conditions based on immediate growth projections. Future growth to the area north of Broad River 

Boulevard (Habersham area, etc.) will be a major consideration to maintaining the capacity integrity along 

this corridor. This growth has been expressed as an issue under the LCOG Regional Model Version #2 

(LRMv2) which expects the approach of Joe Frazier Road to Broad River Boulevard to require widening to a 

multi-lane cross-section.  

 

After review of the existing and future traffic loadings (daily and peak-hour) as well as development 

proposals currently under consideration within the study area, the following concept plan, Figure 5 has been 

developed which provides an over-view of the Broad River Boulevard corridor.  

    

Key notes of this proposed Broad River Boulevard access plan are as follows: 

 

1. Widening of Joe Frazier Road: Widen section between Broad River Boulevard and Possum Hill Road 

to provide a 3-lane section where center-lane will operate as a two-way left-turn lane (TWLTL); 

 

2. Extension of Joe Frazier Road:  As indicated earlier, this extension will allow an alternative route to 

SC 170 as opposed to Broad River Boulevard to the west towards SC 170 (Broad River Bridge). 

 

3. Enhancement of intersection geometrics and traffic control: 

 

• WK Alston Drive to be provided separate turning lanes and likely signalization when 

MUTCD warrants are met. 

• Jennings Road to be provided with separate turning lanes and the possibility of a fourth 

approach leg. Operations to remain as an unsignalized intersection however a single-lane 

round-a-bout could be considered (would remove the need for separate turning lanes).  

• Joe Frazier Road/Extension to be provided separate turning lanes and maintain signal 

control. Can be expected to reduce traffic volumes along Broad River Boulevard to the west.  

4. Extension of Jennings Road:  Provision of creating a four-legged intersection opposite Jennings Road 

for future development. Consideration of continuing connectivity to the south via expected 

development located along the north side of SC 170 (possible connection to SC 170).  

5. Close the Colonial Avenue direct access to Broad River Road (Fig G). Provide a connection between 

Colonial Avenue and Joe Frazier Road Extension by realigning Walker Circle (Fig 7). 

 

The following exhibits (Figures E-G) present each of the study area intersections along Broad River 

Boulevard in a blow-up view of the suggested geometrics and traffic control improvements.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

294

Item 13.



FIG
.E

FIG
.F

FIG
.G

WK ALSTON

JOE FRAZIER

COLONIAL AVE.

S.C. GRID

BRO
A

D
 RIV

ER BLV
D

.

JENNINGS RD.

FIG
URE 5:

BRO
A

D
 RIV

ER BLV
D

.
STUD

Y LIM
ITS

W
A

LKER C
IR.

TALISMAN

12345678

EXISTIN
G

 SIG
N

A
L

PRO
PO

SED
 SIG

N
A

L

PRO
PO

SED
 RO

A
D

 A
D

D
ITIO

N
/IM

PRO
V

EM
EN

TS

FUTURE RO
A

D
/C

O
N

N
EC

TIO
N

 (TBD
)

RO
A

D
 C

LO
SURE

O
LD

 JERIC
HO

 A
PA

RTM
EN

TS
W

A
TERC

REST A
PA

RTM
EN

T
W

A
LM

A
RT/C

RO
SS C

REEK SHO
PPIN

G
 C

EN
TER

BEA
UFO

RT STA
TIO

N
 SHO

PPIN
G

 C
EN

TER
RO

BERT SM
A

LLS M
ID

D
LE SC

HO
O

L
SC

 170 A
PA

RTM
EN

TS
M

ED
IC

A
L O

FFIC
E BUILD

IN
G

S (M
O

B)
BRID

G
ES C

HA
RTER SC

HO
O

L

LEG
EN

D

JOE FRAZIER EXT.

  
E

P
C

, L
L

C
2

4
0

4
 T

a
y
lo

r R
o

a
d

C
a

y
c

e
, S

C
 2

9
0

3
3

(8
0
3
) 7

9
4
 7

0
1
8

(8
0
3
) 7

9
4
 9

2
1
6
 F

a
x

20

295

Item 13.



BRO
AD RIVER BLVD

WK ALSTON

S.C. GRID

RO
BERT SM

A
LLS M

ID
D

LE 1

PRO
PO

SED
 A

PTS.

FIG
URE E:

BRO
A

D
 RIV

ER IN
TERSEC

TIO
N

S
W

K A
LSTO

N
/BRO

A
D

 RV
R

  
E

P
C

, L
L

C
2

4
0

4
 T

a
y
lo

r R
o

a
d

C
a

y
c

e
, S

C
 2

9
0

3
3

(8
0
3
) 7

9
4
 7

0
1
8

(8
0
3
) 7

9
4
 9

2
1
6
 F

a
x

21

296

Item 13.



BRO
AD

 RIVER BLVD

JENNINGS RD

S.C. GRID

FIG
URE F:

BRO
A

D
 RIV

ER IN
TERSEC

TIO
N

S
JEN

N
IN

G
S/BRO

A
D

 RV
R

TALISMAN

  
E

P
C

, L
L

C
2

4
0

4
 T

a
y
lo

r R
o

a
d

C
a

y
c

e
, S

C
 2

9
0

3
3

(8
0
3
) 7

9
4
 7

0
1
8

(8
0
3
) 7

9
4
 9

2
1
6
 F

a
x

22

297

Item 13.



BRO
A

D
 RIVER BLVD

JOE FRAIZIER

COLONIAL AVE.

LEO GREEN RD.

S.C. GRID

FIG
URE G

:
BRO

A
D

 RIV
ER IN

TERSEC
TIO

N
S

JO
E FRA

ZIER/BRO
A

D
 RV

R

JOE FRAIZIER EXTENSION

  
E

P
C

, L
L

C
2

4
0

4
 T

a
y
lo

r R
o

a
d

C
a

y
c

e
, S

C
 2

9
0

3
3

(8
0
3
) 7

9
4
 7

0
1
8

(8
0
3
) 7

9
4
 9

2
1
6
 F

a
x

23

298

Item 13.



24 

ADDITIONAL SUGGESTIONS 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Details of connectivity intersections have also been completed which are related to potential development 

projects and/or additional connectivity suggested for the over-all study area. These suggested connectivity 

points will aid in traffic flow by providing outlets for traffic potentially to not depend on SC 170, limiting 

full-movement intersections or allowing consolidation to signalized intersections along the corridor of SC 

170.  

 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS  

 

WK Alston Drive Connectivity:  With the recent completion of the SCDOT project on SC 170 along the 

frontage of Walmart and the signalization of SC 170 at WK Alston Drive, connectivity access to/from WK 

Alston Drive is recommended (and is in accordance with the Beaufort Code, Section C.2.3, “Street Network 

Diagram – Section 4”) for the existing Walmart development and future development proposals located east 

and west of WK Alston Drive.  

 

As shown by Figure 6, connections suggested including: 

  

• Apartment complex aligning opposite the school’s most northern access;  

• Walmart potentially accessing along WK Alston Drive; and 

• Medical Office/Apartments potential of connecting to the school’s southern access. 

 

It should be noted that WK Alston Drive is an SCDOT maintained roadway (S-761) and currently provides 

access to Robert Smalls Middle school.  

 

Joe Frazier Extension Connectivity:  As part of the extension of Joe Frazier Road to SC 170, connectivity 

access to/from abutting land uses (existing and proposed) should be considered.  

 

As shown by Figure 7, connections suggested including: 

  

• Colonial Avenue is suggested to be closed at Broad River Boulevard as part of the Joe Frazier 

Extension. A connector between the new three-lane alignment of Joe Frazier Road and Walker Circle 

would re-establish this access; and 

• Apartment complex planned to the east of Joe Frazier Road Extension would provide potential of 

allowing access to both SC 170 and Joe Frazier Extension. 

 

Goethe Hill Connections:  New points of access/connectivity are suggested along the section of Goethe Hill 

Road between SC 170 and Parris Island Gateway (includes the portion re-aligned as part of the Joe Frazier 

Extension).  

 

As shown by Figure 8, connections suggested including: 

 

 

• Vacant triangular shaped parcel bordered by SC 170, Goethe Hill Road, and US 21. Currently a 

299

Item 13.



25 

portion of this parcel (northeast section) is being planned as a major retail center. Extending the main 

access drive, located opposite WK Alston Drive at SC 170 to Goethe Hill Road will reduce/minimize 

future access along US 21 while providing access for current unplanned development areas of this 

over-all parcel.  

 

• Re-establish access for Singleton Hill Circle and UPS facility by maintaining a portion of Goethe Hill 

Road and intersecting with the new alignment of Goethe Hill. This connector is recommended to 

extend to Bridges Prep school, providing a second access alternative for the school. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

300

Item 13.



S

E

U

S

T

TT

WK ALSTON

S.C. GRID

BRO
A

D
 RIV

ER BLV
D

.

RO
BERT SM

A
LLS PKW

Y (SC
170)

2

3
5

6
7

FIG
URE 6:

W
K A

LSTO
N

,
FUTURE A

PTS &
 M

O
B

C
O

N
N

EC
TIV

ITY

4

TALISMAN

JENNINGS DR.

12345678

EXISTIN
G

 SIG
N

A
L

PRO
PO

SED
 SIG

N
A

L

PRO
PO

SED
 RO

A
D

 A
D

D
ITIO

N
/IM

PRO
V

EM
EN

TS

FUTURE RO
A

D
/C

O
N

N
EC

TIO
N

 (TBD
)

RO
A

D
 C

LO
SURE

O
LD

 JERIC
HO

 A
PA

RTM
EN

TS
W

A
TERC

REST A
PA

RTM
EN

T
W

A
LM

A
RT/C

RO
SS C

REEK SHO
PPIN

G
 C

EN
TER

BEA
UFO

RT STA
TIO

N
 SHO

PPIN
G

 C
EN

TER
RO

BERT SM
A

LLS M
ID

D
LE SC

HO
O

L
SC

 170 A
PA

RTM
EN

TS
M

ED
IC

A
L O

FFIC
E BUILD

IN
G

S (M
O

B)
BRID

G
ES C

HA
RTER SC

HO
O

L

LEG
EN

D

  
E

P
C

, L
L

C
2

4
0

4
 T

a
y
lo

r R
o

a
d

C
a

y
c

e
, S

C
 2

9
0

3
3

(8
0
3
) 7

9
4
 7

0
1
8

(8
0
3
) 7

9
4
 9

2
1
6
 F

a
x

26

301

Item 13.



COLONIAL AVE.

S.C. GRID

BRO
A

D
 RIV

ER BLV
D

.

FIG
URE 7:

JO
E FRA

ZIER EXT.
C

O
N

N
EC

TIV
ITY

RO
BERT SM

A
LLS PKW

Y (SC
170)

6
7

JO
E FRAZIER EXT.

W
A

LKER C
IR.

12345678

EXISTIN
G

 SIG
N

A
L

PRO
PO

SED
 SIG

N
A

L

PRO
PO

SED
 RO

A
D

 A
D

D
ITIO

N
/IM

PRO
V

EM
EN

TS

FUTURE RO
A

D
/C

O
N

N
EC

TIO
N

 (TBD
)

RO
A

D
 C

LO
SURE

O
LD

 JERIC
HO

 A
PA

RTM
EN

TS
W

A
TERC

REST A
PA

RTM
EN

T
W

A
LM

A
RT/C

RO
SS C

REEK SHO
PPIN

G
 C

EN
TER

BEA
UFO

RT STA
TIO

N
 SHO

PPIN
G

 C
EN

TER
RO

BERT SM
A

LLS M
ID

D
LE SC

HO
O

L
SC

 170 A
PA

RTM
EN

TS
M

ED
IC

A
L O

FFIC
E BUILD

IN
G

S (M
O

B)
BRID

G
ES C

HA
RTER SC

HO
O

L

LEG
EN

D

  
E

P
C

, L
L

C
2

4
0

4
 T

a
y
lo

r R
o

a
d

C
a

y
c

e
, S

C
 2

9
0

3
3

(8
0
3
) 7

9
4
 7

0
1
8

(8
0
3
) 7

9
4
 9

2
1
6
 F

a
x

27

302

Item 13.



ESTELLE RD

S.C. GRID

FIG
URE 8:

G
O

ETHE HILL RD
.

C
O

N
N

EC
TIV

ITY

RO
BERT SM

ALLS PKW
Y (SC

170)

6

7
JO

E FRAZIER EXT.

W
A

LKER C
IR.

CO
LO

NIAL EXT
8

4

G
O

ETHE HILL RD
. (E)

BRO
O

KIN
S PA

TH

12345678

EXISTIN
G

 SIG
N

A
L

PRO
PO

SED
 SIG

N
A

L

PRO
PO

SED
 RO

A
D

 A
D

D
ITIO

N
/IM

PRO
V

EM
EN

TS

FUTURE RO
A

D
/C

O
N

N
EC

TIO
N

 (TBD
)

RO
A

D
 C

LO
SURE

O
LD

 JERIC
HO

 A
PA

RTM
EN

TS
W

A
TERC

REST A
PA

RTM
EN

T
W

A
LM

A
RT/C

RO
SS C

REEK SHO
PPIN

G
 C

EN
TER

BEA
UFO

RT STA
TIO

N
 SHO

PPIN
G

 C
EN

TER
RO

BERT SM
A

LLS M
ID

D
LE SC

HO
O

L
SC

 170 A
PA

RTM
EN

TS
M

ED
IC

A
L O

FFIC
E BUILD

IN
G

S (M
O

B)
BRID

G
ES C

HA
RTER SC

HO
O

L

LEG
EN

D

  
E

P
C

, L
L

C
2

4
0

4
 T

a
y
lo

r R
o

a
d

C
a

y
c

e
, S

C
 2

9
0

3
3

(8
0
3
) 7

9
4
 7

0
1
8

(8
0
3
) 7

9
4
 9

2
1
6
 F

a
x

28

303

Item 13.



29 

SUMMARY of IMPROVEMENTS  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The following presents a summary of the over-all recommendations for this study area in both bullet form as 

well as the attached comprehensive graphic (Figure 9). 

 

  

ROBERT SMALLS PARKWAY (SC 170) 

 

• Provision of a new connection to SC 170 via the extension of Joe Frazier Road from its current 

termini with Broad River Boulevard.  

 

• Signalization and connectivity for the Bridges Prep School. 

 

• Re-alignment of both approaches of Goethe Hill Road. The Eastern section aligns opposite the 

suggested Joe Frazier Road Extension and the western section aligns opposite Bridges Prep School.  

 

• Planning of existing and future intersections to provide adequate spacing for efficient traffic signal 

control/operations with a progression system. 

 

• Connectivity between signalized intersections with internal connectivity between development 

projects. 

 

• Planning of development access between WK Alston Drive and Joe Frazier Extension. 

 

 

BROAD RIVER BOULEVARD 

 

• The extension of Joe Frazier Road to SC 170 will improve the roadway between Broad River Road 

and SC 170 as a multi-lane facility. The traffic signal control at this intersection will be upgraded to 

accommodate the new geometrics of the intersection improvements. The Joe Frazier Extension 

provides a direct access to SC 170 opposed to traveling west along Broad River Road to SC 170, 

toward the Broad River bridge, which will reduce the traffic demand on Broad River Road. Widen 

Joe Frazier to 3-lane cross-section to Possum Hill Road north of Broad River per the Lowcountry 

Council of Government Regional Travel Demand Model. 

 

• Possible signalization of WK Alston Drive when warranted. 

 

• Possible new approach leg opposite Jennings Road serving as access to future development and/or 

connectivity to developed properties to the south. Traffic control for the Broad River Boulevard at 

Jennings Road intersection is planned as STOP sign control or maybe a practical location for a 

roundabout.  

 

 

 

 

304

Item 13.



G
O

ETHE HILL RD
 (E.)

BRO
A

D
 RIVER RD

JOE FRAZIER RD

G
O

ETHE HILL RD
 (W

.)

CASTLE ROCK RD

WK ALSTON DR

JENNINGS RD

COLONIAL AVE

PARRIS IS. GTWY (US 21)

S

E

U

S

T

TT

POSSU

ESTELLE RD.

TALISMAN 

W
A

LKER C
IR.

SINGLETON HILL

2

3

4

5

6

8
FIG

URE 9:
O

V
ERA

LL PRO
PO

SED
IM

PRO
V

EM
EN

TS

S.C. GRID

7

BRO
O

KIN
G

S PA
TH

12345678

EXISTIN
G

 SIG
N

A
L

PRO
PO

SED
 SIG

N
A

L

PRO
PO

SED
 RO

A
D

 A
D

D
ITIO

N
/IM

PRO
V

EM
EN

TS

FUTURE RO
A

D
/C

O
N

N
EC

TIO
N

 (TBD
)

RO
A

D
 C

LO
SURE

O
LD

 JERIC
HO

 A
PA

RTM
EN

TS
W

A
TERC

REST A
PA

RTM
EN

T
W

A
LM

A
RT/C

RO
SS C

REEK SHO
PPIN

G
 C

EN
TER

BEA
UFO

RT STA
TIO

N
 SHO

PPIN
G

 C
EN

TER
RO

BERT SM
A

LLS M
ID

D
LE SC

HO
O

L
SC

 170 A
PA

RTM
EN

TS
M

ED
IC

A
L O

FFIC
E BUILD

IN
G

S (M
O

B)
BRID

G
ES C

HA
RTER SC

HO
O

L

LEG
EN

D

  
E

P
C

, L
L

C
2

4
0

4
 T

a
y
lo

r R
o

a
d

C
a

y
c

e
, S

C
 2

9
0

3
3

(8
0
3
) 7

9
4
 7

0
1
8

(8
0
3
) 7

9
4
 9

2
1
6
 F

a
x

30

305

Item 13.



31 

CONNECTIVITY/ACCESS ENHANCEMENTS 

 

• New connectivity for the Colonial Avenue area to the new Joe Frazier Road Extension, which results 

in the closure of the current direct access to Broad River Boulevard. Additionally, a new connection 

to SC 170 via an extension across/re-alignment of Goethe Hill Road.  

• Possible connections to adjacent properties east or west of WK Alston Drive. 

 

• The connectivity of the retail center/future development along Goethe Hill Road between US 21 and 

SC 170.  

 

• The connectivity of Bridges Prep school and Singleton Hill Circle to the relocated segment of Goethe 

Hill Road (east) provides a second outlet for school traffic and access for a number of residential 

homes. 

 

• Vehicular connectivity will include multimodal bike and pedestrian paths in accordance with the City 

of Beaufort’s and Beaufort County’s respective Comprehensive Plans, including Beaufort County 

Connects; Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan 2021, where feasible. 

 

 

Prepared by  

 

EPC, LLC  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Andrews Engineering 

306

Item 13.


	Top
	Item 5.	APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	10.10.22natural
	11.07.22natural

	Item 6.	CITIZEN COMMENTS
	citizen comment list 01.09.23
	public comment addon
	public comment signatures
	CCL Letter CPO Land Use 1.9.23

	Item 7.	Beaufort Conservation District Crystal Lake Park Annual Report
	2022 BSWCD Presentation

	Item 8.	Beaufort County Green Space Program – Timeline and Application Process to Appoint Green Space Advisory Committee and Establish Green Space Program
	AIS - Green Space Program Timeline and Application
	Application - Green Space Committee Members. Draft 3 w TJK edits 12.20.2022 & MED edits 12.28.22
	County Region Maps
	revised gantt chart

	Item 9.	Resolution to include the Okatie Regional Preserve in the Old Growth Forest Network Private Forest Registry and enter into a Memorandum of Agreement for the property to remain perpetually unlogged
	00_OGFN Private Forest AIS
	01_OGFN Private Forest Resolution
	02a_OGFN Private Forest Information Form
	02b_OGFN Private Forest Map
	02c_OGFN Private Forest Location Map
	03_OGFN Private Forest MOA

	Item 10.	Southern Lowcountry Design Manual Updates
	SoLoCo Design Manual Edits (4) 2023
	SoLoCo Stormwater Design Manual Edits UPDATE KH 1.4.23
	SoLoCo Manual Updates - Exhibit A

	Item 11.	Text Amendment to the Community Development Code (CDC) Section 5.11.90.D (Penalty for Clear Cutting Prior to Development) to Increase the Penalties for Clear Cutting Property and Prive Guidance on Acceptable Forestry Practices.
	LUC_AIS_Clear Cutting
	LUC_Ordinance_Clear Cutting
	LUC_Staff Memo_Clear Cutting
	Portion of South Carolina Code of Laws Title 48

	Item 12.	Text Amendment to the CDC for the CPO Zone Standards
	CPO District Memo
	CPO District Amendment Ordinance
	SKM_C22723010615410

	Item 13.	Text Amendment to the Community Development Code (CDC): Appendix C.2 (Robert Smalls Parkway (SC 170) to Update Access Management Standards
	LUC_AIS_SC 170 Access Management
	LUC_Ordinance_SC 170 Access Management
	LUC_Staff Memo_SC 170 Access Management
	Corridor Review of SC 170 & Broad River Report, Nov 2022

	Bottom

